GOVERNMENT
OF
THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

+ + + + +

BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT

+ + + + +

REGULAR PUBLIC MEETING

+ + + + +
WEDNESDAY

JULY 24, 2024

+ + + + +

The Regular Public Meeting of the District of
Columbia Board of Zoning Adjustment convened via
Video/Teleconference, pursuant to notice at 9:30 a.m EDT,
Frederick L. Hill, Chairperson, presiding.

BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT MEMBERS PRESENT:
FREDERICK L. HILL, Chairperson
LORNA L. JOHN, Vice-Chairperson
CARL BLAKE, Member
CHRISHAUN S. SMITH, NCPC Designee
ZONING COMMISSION MEMBERS PRESENT:

ANTHONY J. HOOD, Chairperson
ROBERT MILLER, Vice-Chairperson

OFFICE OF ZONING STAFF PRESENT:

KEARA MEHLERT, Zoning Specialist
PAUL YOUNG, A/V Production Specialist

OFFICE OF ZONING ATTORNEY ADVISORS PRESENT:

SARAH BAJAJ, ESQ.
MARY NAGELHOUT, ESQ

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1716 14TH ST., N.W,, STE 200
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20009-4309 www.nealrgross.com




The transcript constitutes the minutes from
the Regular Public Meeting held on July 24, 2024.

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1716 14TH ST., N.W,, STE 200
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20009-4309 www.nealrgross.com




CONT-E-N-T-S

| . Decision: Remand PAGE
1. Application No. 20472-B of the River
School : Remand 4
1. Motions

2. Motion to Postpone from ANC 2G in
Application No. 21177 of District of
Col unbi a Departnent of General Services 17

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1716 14TH ST., N.W,, STE 200
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20009-4309 www.nealrgross.com




A wWwN

o O

~l

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

P-ROCEEDI-NGS
(1:49 p.m)

SECRETARY MEHLERT: This is the Board's neeting
session. The first case is Application Nunber 20472-B for
the River School. This is a remand of an order approving,
subject to conditions, special exceptions to allow a daytine
care use under Subtitle U, Section 203.1(h), a private school
use under Subtitle U, Section 203.1(m, and Subtitle X
Section 104, and a reduction in the m ni rum vehicle parking
requi renments of Subtitle C, Section 701.5, under Subtitle C,
Section 703. 2.

This project is for a newchil d devel opnent center
and private school canpus for 350 children with accessory
clinic use and 90 enpl oyees. It's located in the R-1-B Zone
at 4220 Nebraska Avenue, Northwest, Square 1727, Lots 4 and
5. The hearing on remand was on July 3rd. The Board cl osed
t he record and schedul ed for decision. And participating are
Chairman HlIl, Vice Chair John, Board Menber Bl ake, Board
Member Smith, and Conmm ssioner M| er.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Mehlert.

So let's see. A couple of things. So we know
this has been brought to us on renand. W had a hearing, a
full hearing, on it. Vice Chair John has been kind enough
to agree to take the lead on this discussion or at |east
begi n the di scussion.
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But however, before | turn it over to Vice Chair
John, | guess | would al so say that, you know, what we were
charged with by the Court of Appeals' opinion was an adequate
di scussi on may have i ncl uded findi ngs on whet her the shuttle
was necessary to the reduction goal and whether 100 percent
conpliance was required.

Additionally, if the shuttlew || be required, the
Board should consider whether the school w il adequately
enforce that requirenent. On remand, the Board shoul d nake
additional findings about the shuttle's precise role
consistent with this analysis. If 100 percent use of the
shuttle is necessary, the Board should determ ne whether it
woul d require the school to neet that |level as a condition
in granting its application.

| have sone pretty straightforward opinions, |
suppose, on it. But since Vice Chair John was so kind to
start the discussion, | wll turn it over to her and then
circle around when it gets back to ne.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JOHN: Thank you, M. Chairman.

| will start the discussion, but | don't expect
to be exhaustive. So the Board was charged at | ooking to see
whet her 100 percent conpliance with the shuttle bus was
required. And there is anple information in the record that
shows that the Board -- that the Applicant does not
antici pate 100 percent conpliance with the shuttle bus.
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The information is described at Exhibit 100B,
whi ch shows how the traffic managenent study indicated that
peak traffic would have the highest trip generation in the
norni ngs and that the Applicant conmtted to a reduction of
45 percent. This reduction would be net by several neans,
and the nost inportant one is the shuttle bus.

The Applicant indicated further and the record
al so shows that the Applicant does not expect that there
woul d be 100 percent conpliance with the shuttle bus plan in
order to neet that 45 percent reduction. There would be, of
course, exenptions for sone students who neet certain
criteria, such as those that walk to school or if they neet
certain ADA qualifications, or they're driven to school by
faculty, parents who are faculty at the school and who are
allowed to drive to school, or parents with younger siblings
because this shuttle bus requirenment would only apply to
students from K t hrough 6.

So, with that extensive discussion in the record,
which the Board in its order did not highlight, | feel
confortable in nmy conclusion that 100 percent conpliance is
not required and that the Board shoul d adopt the conditions
recommended by the River School that dictate howthe shuttle
bus requi rement woul d be inposed and enforced.

And the Applicant also detailed how -- that
there's a progressive enforcenent system for parents who
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don't neet that shuttle bus requirenent. This is contained
In the contract that the parents sign. And also, it is --
| think that it's a progressive structure, which could end
in dismssal. The Board cannot require that the Applicant
enforce the shuttl e bus programin that way because | believe
that that's an internal operational policy that this Board,
| don't believe, under the existing case |law, can dictate.

But |I'm satisfied that what the Applicant has
proposed is reasonable. The Applicant is also proposing to
share the bus routes when the school opens, which is a nore
-- I"m sorry, share the bus routes with the ANC when the
school opens, which is reasonabl e since the Applicant cannot
anticipate at this tinme what the student body woul d | ook |i ke
and what the shuttle bus needs woul d be.

Now, with respect to the additional conditions,

the Applicant is proposing to make these conditions of the

shuttl e bus clearer by proposing a new condition. And |
guess we can discuss these as well. | believe those
condi tions are reasonabl e.

The one proposal |I'mnot in agreenment with is the
proposal to reviewor to revise Condition 4, which says that
all student pickup and drop-off activities shall occur on
canpus. The Applicant shall not pernit pickups or drop-offs
of students from passenger vehicles on 42nd Street, Van Ness
Street, Warren Street, and it also includes, or other

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1716 14TH ST., N.W,, STE 200
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20009-4309 www.nealrgross.com




A wWwN

o O

~l

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

nei ghbor hood streets under any circunstances.

| believeinserting, or other nei ghborhood streets
under any circunstances, is too broad. And | don't know how
that woul d be i nposed. O course -- I'msorry, enforced.
O course, the Applicant and the ANC and the parties can
agree to defining which streets would be covered in the
shuttl e bus plan. But | don't believe the Board should
| ncorporate such a very broad area in the order

And so those are ny thoughts, M. Chairnman.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Ckay. Thanks, Vice Chair John.
Thank you for taking the | ead.

Wio woul d |ike to have a di scussion next?

MEMBER BLAKE: |'I1 go.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Go ahead, M. Blake. Thank you.

VEMBER BLAKE: M. Chair, | by and |arge agree
with everything that Vice Chair John said with regard to
this. | believe that the -- it was clear fromthe outset that
the Applicant had intended to use a variety of neans to neet
the threshold requirenment for the 45 percent reduction.

And i n our hearing, we referenced the -- let's see
-- Exhibit 46A and al so Exhibit 69A from the Departnent of
Transportation. And |ooking at those two exhibits, it was
pretty clear, and in reviewing that, that the footnotes
there, which presented in Table 9B on pages | abel ed 38 and
39, assune that there are going to basically be 139 students
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who woul d actually use the bus.

Footnote 1 discussed the fact that there were
going to be anywhere from 326 to 338 students and that K
t hrough 6 woul d be conposed of 203 students, and the younger
ki ndergarten about 135. And they also assune there there
woul d be potentially 24 students per bus, resulting in about
Si X buses or six trips.

So, when | thought about that, it's clear from

that that the utilization of the shuttle would not be

necessary to accomnmobdate that. The sinple math says 68
percent of the students -- and this is just a rough esti mate,
t hough -- would be using the bus on a regular basis wth

t hose specific inclusions, which are laid out in those two
tabl es, again, whichisinthe Applicant's Exhibit 46A(1) and
al so incorporated in DDOT's report as well.

So, for that reason, | believe that it has been
there clearly stated the role it would play in neeting the
objective. And it 100 percent was not necessary; in fact,
it was not expected. | also believe there was an assunption
with regard to absenteeismor -- as well, about five percent.
So the nunbers actually did reflect a fairly conservative
estimate, and not 100 percent was anti ci pat ed.

| do agree with the O fice of Planning that the
new conditions do in fact reinforce a ot of the statenents
that were made throughout and in the revised TDM exhibit,
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whi ch Vice Chair John pointed out. And | would be in support
of including those proposed conditions outlined in Exhibit
171A. And | agree with Vice Chair John on the |ocation as
well. Thank you.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Thank you, M. Bl ake.

| nmean, | can go next al so. So | think that we
heard a lot of testinony on this issue, and what the Board
was again asked to do was whether or not the Board thought
that 100 percent use of the shuttle bus was necessary to
achieve the goals that the Board thought was necessary to
mtigate any adverse inpact for this particular project.

| don't think that the Board at any time thought
that the shuttl e bus was 100 percent necessary, neaning that
everyone was supposed to use the shuttle bus. The goal was
to keep people out of their cars. And really, there is a
trip count that is what they are to adhere to, or is what is
going to be kind of the teeth to this particul ar issue.

Then in the testinony that we heard was all really
kind of |ike how there were different ways in which people
were not going to be using cars, you know, the students who
wal k or bike to school, the ones who took private
transportation, sone that have a younger sibling that's
permtted to ride by the car, and then there would be |ike
a -- the other student, the ol der student, would be able to
arrive by the car that way.
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And then | think that, again, the docunented
physi cal disabilities or whatever reasons that the school was
putting forward to keep -- or allow ng people that have a
need to be driven, that they, the school, are going to be
able to figure out what is or isn't appropriate based upon,
I think, ADA. |I'mnot actually exactly sure. But they, the
school, are going to be able to determ ne this.

And the reason why it doesn't really matter is
because there's still the trip count. | nean, they have to
adhere to the trip count. And so | did not get that argunent
fromthe people in opposition as to that being an issue.

| think that as far as the conditions go, | would
agree wi th what everyone has said in ternms of what the Ofice
of Planning' s recomrendati on and then also the Applicant's
conditions in 171A -- | guess the specificity in what Vice
Chair John was saying in ternms of Condition Nunmber 4 -- just
to be clear, Vice Chair John, you're saying that we would
strike, or ot her nei ghbor hood streets under any
ci rcunst ances, and woul d we keep the rest of it?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JOHN: Yes, that was ny thought.
We woul d just strike, or other nei ghborhood streets, because
it's a wde area. What streets exactly --

BZA CHAIR HILL: Cot it.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JOHN: -- are they considering?
And they can include that in the shuttle bus route plan if
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12

that's necessary.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: GCkay. | would agree with that.
And then it would still -- the remainder of it, that all
student pickup and drop-off activity shall occur on canpus;
the Applicant shall not permt pickups or drop-offs of
students from passenger vehicles on 42nd Street, Van Ness
Street, Warren Street -- those would be included, correct?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  Yes.

BZA CHAIR HILL: And then the Applicant wll
ensure that caregivers will not park on nei ghborhood streets
during drop-off and pickup, to wait, or walk their students
to and fromthe subject property. Correct?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  Yes.

BZA CHAIR HILL: kay. Al right. " m
confortable with that.

M. Smth or Conmi ssioner Mller? |I'msorry, M.
-- yeah, M. Smith or Conm ssioner -- go ahead, M. Smth.

MEMBER SM TH: | don't have too nuch to add. |
think all of ny fell ow Board nenbers have really encapsul at ed
where my head was on this particular case, and | by and | arge

agree with what you're saying. Wuat the Court was tasking

us with doing here is, if the shuttle bus is required, how
would the Applicant, | believe, reasonably enforce that
requirenment ?

And there was questions that came up about -- |

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1716 14TH ST., N.W,, STE 200
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20009-4309 www.nealrgross.com




A wWwN

o O

~l

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

13

t hi nk based on -- hold on, sorry -- based off of everything
that was stated on the record. It was never the intention
that the shuttle bus would encapsulate all of the student
arrival at a particular site. There is nuance to that
particul ar arrival, and the Applicant has provi ded a detail ed
transportati on managenent pl an that woul d ensure a reasonabl e
reduction in private vehicle trips to the site to reduce
traffic that would cone to the school.

So | believe that what was submtted within the
record -- | believe wth these conditions and with revised
conditions submtted, would address the concerns that was
raised by the remand. And | do agree with the position of
Ms. John to anend the Revised Condition Nunber 4 to renove
the | ast portions of that statenent because | do agree with
her that it would be hard to enforce such a vague conditi on.

So, with that, | wll approve of the revised
condi ti ons.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Thank you.

Conmi ssioner Mller?

VI CE CHAl RPERSON M LLER: Thank you, M. Chai r man,
and thank you to ny fellow Board nenbers, especially Vice
Chair John, for your comments and deliberations thus far,
which were very conprehensive and | think address the
concerns raised in the Court's remand.

| think the River School applicant has proposed
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a condition that clarifies what each of you have said is that
with our understanding that the shuttle bus would be a
requi red mechanism required tool, that this school would
have to use for the Kto 6 students in order to neet with
limted specified exceptions, which they've spelled out in
that condition that they've offered in order to neet, as the
Chai rman just enphasized, the 45 percent trip reduction
threshold that is required in the transportati on managenent
plan that is part of this case.

And that shuttle bus is a requirenent. But there
are limted exceptions, which are spelled out now in the
condition that's been provided to us. And the threshold is
the key to whether that shuttle bus requirenment will have to
be strengthened or other neasures, other enhanced traffic
mtigation neasures, wll have to be inplenmented. And
there's the nonitoring that goes on once this gets going.

And there's enforcenent referenced in that
condition to the progressive consequences and penalties if
t he parents who don't need any -- if those kids aren't using
the shuttle bus and they don't neet any of the exceptions,
there are progressive penalties |eading to expul sion, which
are part of the student code of conduct and -- which are part
of the transportati on managenent plan, which is part of this
case.

So | concur with ny fell owBoard nmenbers that this
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condition provided by R ver School does clarify that the
shuttle bus is a requirenent. Not 100 percent of the
students are going to be using the shuttle, just because
there are those specified exceptions, |imted, and there's
the enforcenent nechanismthat's spelled out. And in order
to neet the 45 percent peak norning rush hour threshold,
that's the key.

On t he broadeni ng of that condition requiringthat
parents not drop off students on nei ghborhood streets, |
agree wwth ny fellow nenbers that it was -- addi ng, or other
nei ghbor hood streets, was vague. The key is that the general
requirement is that the students be picked up and dropped of f
on canpus other than any shuttle bus off-canpus site that
m ght be provided at a later tine.

So | think that it was -- the original condition
on that point, that they not drop off on i nmedi atel y adj acent
streets, is enforceable. To reference all other nei ghborhood
streets -- | don't know how far that goes. So | think what
we had there originally was a reasonabl e condition to enforce
t he pi ckup and drop-off general requirenent to be on canpus,
not in the surroundi ng nei ghbor hood.

So | appreciate the River School being responsive
to the Board's request in its procedural order about the
remand, and | appreciate their attenpts to be responsive to
ot her ANCs' requests, whether it's tracking students who are
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wal kers or using public transportation to nake sure there's
no confusi on about who is allowed to wal k onto the canpus.

So I think we've got a reasonabl e response here
tothe Court's remand, and we can proceed accordi ngly. Thank
you.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Thank you, everyone. Thank you
for your tinme and your deliberations and work on this.

' mgoing to go ahead and nake a notion, then, to
approve Application Nunber 20472-B and t he del i berati ons t hat
the Board have put forward considering the remand of this
particular application, including the new -- or not new
conditions, the conditions that are in Exhibit 171A, however,
altering Condition Nunber 4 as | had read earlier in the
record and ask for the Ofice of Zoning's Legal Division to
help us with the witing of the order, but again, |ust
striking the other nei ghborhood streets under any
ci rcunstance portion fromCondition 4, and ask for a second.

Ms. John?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  Second.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: The notion nade and seconded.

Secretary Mehlert, if you could take a roll call,
pl ease.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Pl ease respond to the Chair's
notion to approve the application with the conditions as
noted by the Chair in Exhibit 171A, plus the edits to the
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proposed Condition 4.

Chairman H Il ?

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Yes.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Vice Chair John?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  Yes.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: M. Smth? Thank you,

M. Smth, sorry.

MEMBER SM TH:  Yes.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: M. Bl ake?

MEMBER BLAKE: Yes.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: And Conmi ssioner Ml ler?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON M LLER:  Yes.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Staff report the vote is five
to zero to zero to approve Application 20372-B with the
conditions on the notion nade by Chairman Hill and seconded
by Vice Chair John.

BZA CHAIR HILL: Thank you, Ms. Mehlert.

kay. Gkay. GCkay. | think I only have one nore
pi ece of business with Comm ssioner MIler, and then we can
t ake a break.

Ms. Mehlert, if you want to call our next item

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Next is Application Nunber
21177, the D.C. Departnent of General Services. This is a
self-certified application pursuant to Subtitle X, Section
901. 2, for special exception under Subtitle X, Section 900. 3,
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to allow an extension or enlargenent of a use that was
originally permtted and |awfully established as a matter
of right, for which the zoning regulations now require
speci al exception approval.

This is the wenlargenent of a large-scale
governnent use, which now requires approval as a specia
exception under Subtitle I, Section 303.1(c). It is |located
in the D-4-R zone at 501 New York Avenue, Northwest, Square
482-S, Lot 800. And the hearing for this case is currently
schedul ed for Septenber 18th. And before the Board today is
a notion from ANC 2G t o postpone the heari ng.

BZA CHAIR HILL: kay. So, you guys, |'m going
to let, maybe, sonebody el se start the discussion again on
this one. W'Il see if anybody wants to step forward and
start the discussion. If not, | can always start the
di scussi on.

The reason why |I'm pulsing is because, as |
menti oned before, this is ny ANC, and | do not think that
that in any way will stop nme from being able to apply the
regul ations to this issue, as we've al ready gone through this
before -- or not gone through it once before. W had an
appeal on this project. And so | nention that again for the
record.

But t he post ponenent before us -- there's a coupl e
of things that I want to talk through with you guys. There's
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a request for a postponenent from Septenber to Novenber
sonetine. | forget when that is, when they -- | have to | ook
when they were asking for the postponenent -- and that they
give us a couple reasons, one of which being that proper
notice was not given to the conplete 200-footers. And so
know t hat the notice has gone out now to the 200-footers.

But there's one nore itemto kind of tal k about,
and |'m not sure what you -- the one | know | want to talk
about I'mnot sure what to do wth, | guess, just yet is that
there was a submi ssion by the ANC yesterday but was not
served on DGS. So it was not served on the parties, so |
can't let it into the record for us to necessarily talk
about .

| know that you guys have seen it. If it's
sonmet hing that you think is changing your opinion or you
would li ke to have that in the record, then we would have to
allowit into the record and conme back next week again -- or
|"'msorry, ask the ANCto serve it on the parties, which is
DGS, and then cone back and have this deli berati on next week.
| don't necessarily think we need to do that. | think we
need to have this deliberation now.

But | offer up those different itens and ask if
sonmebody else would like to start the discussion. And if
not, again, | will, but just seeing if anybody wants to step
f orwar d.
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Al right. Conmm ssioner MIler. But | guessit's
one of those things like | renenber if you waited |ong
enough, that you get voluntold for whatever was going on.
Soit'sinteresting. Howlong | can stay quiet | don't know.
But thank you, Vice Chair MIller.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON M LLER: Wl l, since | won't be
In the rest of your neeting, | thought | should step up. So
we have before us the request from ANC 6E for a post ponenent
of the hearing on this case, which is an application for a
speci al exception to permt the tenporary central cell bl ock
on New York Avenue, related case that we had a hearing on
back in the spring. Since the hearing, we got an appeal of
the permt that was issued to the Departnment of General
Services for the tenporary cell block because they were of
the opinion that it was matter of right.

And this Board disagreed and agreed with the
Appel | ants, the opposition, which was the ANC, ANCs in this
case, anong others. And so a special exception application
has been fil ed pursuant to our denial of the matter of right,
pursuant to our granting of the appeal that had granted the
permt as a matter of right.

So, on the issue of ANC 2G s letter dated July

23rd, which we've seen, | have no objection to putting it in
the record. | don't think it's anything different than what
ANC 6E had already put into the record and, | think, was
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served on the parties. And |I think the Applicant, DGS' s,
Departnent of Corrections opposition notion, which we have
in the record as well, addresses the siml|ar concerns that
6E had rai sed. They're the sane requests, sane concerns that
2G is now raising that 6E had previously raised.

So | have no objectionto 2G s letter beinginthe
record, M. Chairman, if others -- if the mpjority of the
Board agrees. | would just note that the original notice,
as | think the Chairman said, apparently did not include all
of the 200-footers. | think there was a | arge condom ni um
bui | di ng, anobngst others, that may not have gotten the
original notice.

That was corrected. That deficiency was
corrected, and a new notice went out that -- on the record
and apparently does include all of the 200-foot nei ghbors --
so notice in tinme for the Septenber 18th hearing. However,
the ANCs in each raise concerns about having enough tine.
Even though they participated in the previous related case

hearing on the appeal, they need nore time than over the

sunmer .

| don't think we need to postpone it to Novenber.
So there isn't a deficiency. There isn't technically a
deficiency in the current notice that went out. It

apparently i ncludes all of the 200-footers, including the one
that was left -- at | east the | arge one that was | eft off the
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original notice.
And people have known about this in the

nei ghbor hood because of the previous case that we had a

hearing on, which was well publicized and had a |ot of
extensive public hearing testinony and has been -- even a
report about it in nedia. But -- so | don't think we need
to postpone this to Novenber. | would think Septenber 18th
technically neets -- the new notice neets that -- the tine
requi renent. But | wouldn't have a problemwth going to
Cctober. | don't think we shoul d be postponing to Novenber.

| think that's not necessary.

So that's where | am M. Chairnman.

BZA CHAIR HILL: Okay. Thank you.

Who woul d like to go next?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JOHN: Ckay. I'Ill go next. |
agree with everything that Vice Chair MIler has said. The
revised notice corrects any deficiency that originally
exi st ed. And | agree with the Applicant's response in
opposition to the notion.

And | believe that the Applicant would be
prejudiced from this continuance because the parties are
fully aware, as Vice Chair MIller said, of all of the issues
in this case. And there was a full hearing in the appeal.
And so | don't see what would be served by another | engthy
delay. And so | would also not include the new letter from
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the ANC, which was not properly noticed.

So, in essence, | agree wwth Vice Chair Mller's
concl usi on. But | would kick the Septenber tinme frane
perhaps to the end of Septenber, if possible, for reasons not
related to this hearing. Thank you, M. Chairnman.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Thank you, Vice Chair John.

M. Blake, | think | saw your hand up.

MEMBER BLAKE: Yes, you did. My comment is |
agree with what you sai d about there being sufficient notice
to all the relevant parties at this point. | do think it's
i nportant that ANC 2G does have an opportunity to eval uate
this in an organized format, which, given the summertine
activities, would necessitate having this at sone point in
| at e Sept enber/ Cct ober, which would allow themto neet and
review it formally.

So, for that reason, | do agree it woul d be best
to postpone it but not until Novenmber. | don't think that's
necessary, as the community has a great deal of know edge
about this process and, |like you said, have been notified.
And | think it would inpair the ability for the project to
just delay it unnecessarily.

So | think that postponing it at least until a
nore reasonable tinme frane, early October, such that the ANC
had a chance to have formal neetings, woul d be appropriate,
but not till Novenber.
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BZA CHAIR HI LL: GCkay. Thank you.

M. Smith?

MEMBER SM TH: | have nothing nore to add. I
agree with the statenents provided by nmy coll eagues on this
particul ar case. |'mnot opposed to allowng the ANC | etter
within the record. Typically, when we -- even if they would
file late, we allowtheminto the record. And | don't think
it's nmuch materially different than the one that we already
had in the record. So |I'm not necessarily opposed to that
if the Board is inclined to allow that within the record.

Regardi ng the postponenent itself, | agree with
everything that's stated. | do believe that the Applicant
for this case during that time has corrected the issue of
proper notification of their public building that wasn't
properly notified, and it was done in a tinmely manner.

So | believe that question of a continuance woul d
be a noot point at this point. And | agree that the
Applicant would be prejudiced if we were to nove this back

another two nonths. So | aminclined to deny the notion to

post pone.

BZA CHAIR HILL: Okay. Al right.

Madam Secretary, do you know when ANC 6C neets?
Is it C? Yeah -- 6E. 6E. [|'msorry.

SECRETARY NMEHLERT: They neet on the fourth
Tuesday of each nonth. So they woul d neet on Sept enber 24t h.
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BZA CHAIR HILL: Ckay. The fourth Tuesday. And

do you have all the ANCs, when they neet?

SECRETARY MEHLERT: No. | just did a quick
Googl e.

BZA CHAIR H LL: Oh. Geat. So | nean -- and
think mne -- 2Gis on the second Thursday of each nonth,
correct?

SECRETARY MEHLERT: 2G | think -- yeah. | think

they neet on Septenber 12th.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Right. GCkay. And then 6E is
going to neet in Septenber on the 24th. Is that what you
sai d?

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Yes.

BZA CHAIR HILL: GCkay. And then they woul d neet
in Cctober, 6E, on the 22nd?

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Correct.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Okay. Al right. | don't know.

So this is what |I'mkind of proposing, right? So
-- well, first of all, | think that this has now been
properly noticed. | think that the additional 200-footers
have gotten notice. They've had a chance to -- you know,
what ever, be notifi ed. And this case has been in the
comrunity for sone tine, neaning we have the appeal and

everyt hi ng.
So | was kind of torn on the postponenent, and t he
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reason why -- and also, for the record, | didn't go to my ANC
neeting this time, right? | just didn't go. So | don't have
any extra information. So the -- oh. W haven't heard the
case, right? W haven't heard the special exception. W
haven't heard what we think. W haven't heard from the
O fice of Planning. We haven't heard from the Applicant,
right?

So I don't know what we're necessarily going to
think about this, right? And | wasn't terribly interested
I n post poni ng because | didn't necessarily think, regardl ess
of -- unless we thought that they just didn't neet the
criteria and we weren't probably going to think they net the
criteria and it was going to get rejected. | think that if
we did think that it was going to neet the criteria, | think
t hat we woul d have wanted to hear a lot fromthe ANGCs.

So | didn't necessarily think it was something
t hat was goi ng to happen right away, right? So l'malittle
bit torn in that | think we would probably have a | ot nore
di scussion with the ANCs about this particular project. So,
therefore, it still would probably gone on. It woul dn't
necessarily have just been heard and deci ded on that day.

So, anyway -- so now I'm a little bit torn
because, again, if we did give the ANC nore tinme, that neans
that they will have net in Septenber, and al so, then 6E w ||
have net in Septenber, and then we could have a hearing,
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i ke, m d-Cctober. Right? And that neans that, also, the
ANC -- that nmeans that the ANC woul d have nmet once on the
23rd of Septenber, and 2G would have net on the 12th of
Sept enber.

And then, if we net on the 2nd of October, then
that woul d be before 2G s next neeting. R ght? So then we
could hear the case, see what's going on, and then there
woul d be another neeting for the ANC both in 2Gand in 6E in
Cctober. I'mtrying to talk this through.

So, if we postponed to October 2nd, that woul d be
before the second possible ANC neeting for both ANCs, and
then we will all have heard the case. So |I'mkind of | eaning
t owards the 2nd of Cctober so that it's after both ANCs woul d
have had a chance to neet in Septenber, and then we have the
heari ng on Cctober 2nd. O -- and I'mthrowing this out
there because, as | said, I'mgoing to hear from everybody
on this one -- is that we can neet on October 30th, and that
woul d have given the ANCs two neetings.

But | still think they will neet after we have our
hearing. So | don't know what to do, either the 2nd or the

30th of October. Does anybody have a thought?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JOHN: | have a thought, M.
Chai rman, and a question. Was 6E a participant in the
appeal? | don't recall. It seens to nme everybody was
I nvol ved.
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BZA CHAIR HILL: | think we took testinony from
people in 6E, but | don't think we heard from6E. So 6E now
woul d be, | think, a party because they're an adj oi ni ng ANC.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JOHN: Yes. Okay. So | agree
with you that October 2nd woul d be sufficient because this
IS not a new project, and everyone has noti ce and under st ands

what the stakes are. So | would suggest the earlier
heari ng, Cctober 2nd.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Ckay.

Anyone el se?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON M LLER: M. Chairman, | was j ust
| ooking at different cal endars. | think a couple weeks
del ayed to allow the ANC to Septenber to have their neeting,
di scuss this, is appropriate. So an early QOctober hearing
is reasonable. | would ask that it be Cctober 9th rather
t han October 2nd just because there is a religious holiday

in there and mght be -- it just mght be better, depending
because it sounds |ike that could be a | ong hearing.

BZA CHAIR HILL: GCkay. That's fine with ne. |

nmean, the thing about Cctober 9th -- and I still think it's
going to be fine -- is that 2Gis neeting on the 10th. And
SO -- but -- 2G is neeting on the 10th. So they would

basically be here for the neeting on the 9th and then neet
on the 10t h.
VI CE CHAI RPERSON M LLER: | have no problemwi th

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1716 14TH ST., N.W,, STE 200
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20009-4309 www.nealrgross.com




A wWwN

o O

~l

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

29

doing it one week |ater than that as well. So, | nean, if
you think that nakes nore sense -- |'I|l defer to you, M.
Chai r man.

BZA CHAIR H LL: No, no. | mean, | think the 9th
Is fine. | think everybody wll know everything.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON M LLER: But the 16th is fine for
me, too. Just personally, | think that's fine.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: That's fi ne. No, the 9th -- |
wanted to do it before the next -- | wanted to do it before

VICE CHAI RPERSON M LLER: Ckay. | was
m sunder st andi ng what you were sayi ng.

BZA CHAIR HILL: Yeah. So okay. So, then, you,
Comm ssioner MIller, are better off on the 9th, which is
great, just because we need you. You've been involved in all

this for a while, and you voted with me on the appeal. So
okay.

M. Bl ake?

MEMBER BLAKE: | agree, M. Chair, that sonetine
in Cctober would be good because | would like to have the
ANCs participate fully in this and have the opportunity to
have an organi zed neeting. So that date sounds good to ne,
either the 2nd or the 9th. Either one is perfectly fine.

BZA CHAIR HILL: Ckay.

M. Smith?
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MEMBER SMTH: | agree with M. Blake. It would
allowthe ANCs to both be fully engaged. So | woul d probably
be the date -- | think you guys said that they neet on the
7th, so would it be better for themto be on the 9th? The
neeting on the 9th?

BZA CHAIR HILL: No. 6E is going to neet on the
24t h, 1 think.

Is that what you said, Madam Secretary? o
Septenber, right?

SECRETARY MEHLERT: 6E, yes.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Right. So then they're going to

-- so what's happening is 2Gw ||l get a neeting in Septenber.

6E will get a neeting in Septenber. W will then have our
hearing, and what | think will probably happen, unless
sonmething -- what | think will probably happen is we'll want

the ANCs to neet again after the hearing. That's why |I'm
saying that the ANCs then woul d have a chance to neet after

t he hearing.

So that's why |I'm shooting for the 9th, which
you're -- can you confirmfor nme again that 2Gis on Cctober
10t h?

SECRETARY MEHLERT: That's what their website
says.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: GCkay. All right. And |I'mpretty
sure, like | said, it's the second Thursday. So that neans
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that if we did it the 9th, then we could have -- and then
everybody would get another neeting before we mght neet
again. So |I'm proposing October 10th -- I'msorry, Cctober
ot h.

MEMBER SMTH. |I'mfine with October 9th.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Ckay.

What is the schedule |ike, Mdam Secretary, on
Oct ober 9t h?

SECRETARY MEHLERT: There are six cases schedul ed

for the hearing. One is an appeal, and then there's another

case that has been -- that have party status and opposition.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Okay. What does Cctober 2nd | ook
li ke?

SECRETARY MEHLERT: COctober 7th, there are seven
heari ng cases.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Ckay.

And, Commi ssioner MIller, I'mtotally fine wth,
like -- | just don't know which holiday it is or how that
works out. So, if we did it in the nmorning on QOctober 2nd,

that would still give enough tine, or you still think -- I'm
conpletely fine, by the way. It doesn't matter. |It's going
to be a long day no matter which day it is.

So, Cctober 9th, we have an appeal and a bunch of
stuff, it sounds |ike. And Cctober 2nd, we've got seven
cases, which is also a lot of stuff. So it really doesn't
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matter to ne. | nean, if you -- Conm ssioner MIller, please
don't let nme push you one way or the other. I f you think
that October 9th works better for you -- because we really
want to have you here -- then we'll just do it COctober 9th.
It's not a big deal.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON M LLER: | woul d prefer that.

BZA CHAIR H LL: GCkay. Geat. So, then, Cctober
9th. Ckay? And we'll try todothis first so that we can --
| don't know who's on the 9th. If it's Comm ssioner MI I er,
then you're wth us the whol e day. So then -- you know.
Ckay.

So I'mgoing to nake a -- okay. So, then, as far
as the letting the letter into the record, | think that the
ANC could now give it to the party, right? And then we'll
put it in the record, okay?

So go ahead, Madam Secretary, and ask the ANC to

serve the party, and then we'll put it in the record. GCkay?
kay. Geat.

So, then, I"'mgoing to nake a notionto -- | don't
know what it is. |I'mgoing to nmake a notion to, | guess,
deny the notion to -- | nean deny the notion opposed -- well,
actually, | don't know what |'m doi ng.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JOHN: | think you're granting

the notion to postpone, M. Chairmn.
BZA CHAIR HI LL: Okay. Geat. So we're goingto
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grant the notion to postpone to 10/9/24. ay? Ww It's

getting hear the end of the year. [It'll be '25, alnost.

So okay. Vice Chair John, do you second?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JOHN: Ch, second.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: GCkay. Geat. So the notion nade
and seconded. If you could take a roll call, Madam
Secretary.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Pl ease respond to the Chair's
notion to grant ANC 2G s notion to postpone the hearing.

Chairman H Il ?

BZA CHAIR HILL: Yes.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Vice Chair John?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  Yes.

SECRETARY MEHLERT:  Conmi ssioner Smith?

MEMBER SM TH:  Yes.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: M. Bl ake?

MEMBER BLAKE: Yes.

SECRETARY MEHLERT:  Conm ssioner M| ler?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON M LLER:  Yes.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Staff report the vote is five
to zero to zero to approve ANC 2G s notion to postpone to

Oct ober 9th on the notion nade nmy Chairman Hill, seconded by
Vi ce Chair John.

BZA CHAIR HILL: Okay. Geat.

So, Vice -- I'"'msorry. Yeah, Vice Chair Mller,
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you' re done, right?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON M LLER: Yes. Thank you very
much. | hope you all have a good day.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: You have a nice day.

We're going to take a break, correct, everybody?
So you want to do 10 m nutes, 15 m nutes?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  Fifteen.

BZA CHAIR HILL: Ckay. We'll get back here at
11:15. Thank you.

(Wher eupon, the above-entitled matter went briefly
off the record.)

BZA CHAI R HI LL: Let's see. Secretary Mehlert,
pl ease go ahead and call our next item of business.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Next in the Board's neeting
session is Application No. 21098 of Alta Laquearia, LLC
This is a self-certified application pursuant to Subtitle X,
Section 1002 for an area variance fromalley | ot devel opnent
standards of Subtitle E Section 5100.1(a). This is for a
partial second story addition to an existing one-story
building on an alley lot to be used as a principal dwelling.
It's located in the RF-1 zone at 633 Rear E Street, SE,
Square 877, Lot 888. The hearing was originally schedul ed
on April 24th and postponed to July 3rd. After the hearing
on July 15th, the chairman granted the applicant's notion to
reopen the record to allow submssion of infornmation
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regardi ng security bars. And participating are Chairmn
Hill, Vice Chair John, M. Smth, M. Blake, and Dr. | manur a.

BZA CHAIR HILL: Ckay, great. Thank you. All
right, so we took a lot of testinony on this. There was a
| ot of discussion fromthe applicant, fromtheir attorney,
from parties in opposition, and there's also letters in
support and then the O fice of Planning.

| think the property is a great property and |
think the design or what they're trying to do is a great,
wonder ful design. | just don't particularly think they neet
the variance test. And so, you know, for ne it is an area
vari ance. It's not a use variance, but it is an area
variance and | think that they actually can do sonmething with
that property. Like | don't think that -- you know, |ike
what they're trying to do nmay be practically difficult, but
they could use -- there are properties, all kinds of alley

properties |i ke that alley property that have | ess space t hat

make honmes out of it. And so |l -- and |I'mhappy to have the
del i berati on, happy to hear what anybody has to say. | think
it's a fantastic -- again, like |I would love to be able to

approve the design because it's just a crazy, wonderful
beauti ful design. | just don't think that for ne they're
neeting the prongs of the test to approve the project.
Again, and |I'm going to even like turn to the
Ofice of Planning's report in terns of that their argunent

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1716 14TH ST., N.W,, STE 200
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20009-4309 www.nealrgross.com




A wWwN

o O

~l

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

36

about the exceptional situation or the practical difficulty,

It again -- and I'll nake one nore coment | guess about the
r oof . Li ke, you know, and again, no disrespect to what
they're trying to do because | think it's a wonderful

project. They're taking away a |ot of the roof to nmake the
courtyard, so if they're taking away that nmuch of the roof
to make the courtyard, you would think they could al so take
away sone of the roof to |ower the roof so that they could
have this second story if they wanted, but just it not be as
hi gh. And so that's kind of where | am And al so, they just
don't need the second story. Like they can just do sonething
with the building the way it is. So, but that's my thoughts.

So who would |ike to go? | amagoing to go around
the Board. M. Smth?

MEMBER SM TH: | pretty much agree with what
you're saying in this particular case. The request before
us is to construct a partial second story addition to an
exi sting one-story building on an alley lot, and to ne, the
guestion before the Board is the requested area vari ance,
neets the area vari ance, requirenments to construct a buil ding
unit that is 28 feet tall according to the application with
2 stories which is 8 feet taller than the allowed out of
right height for an alley lot building. So we went to the
three prongs. So to nme the easiest -- I'Il start with the
second prong, the question about substantial detrinent tothe
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public good.

The question here 1is whether granting the
addi ti onal eight feet of building height for the second fl oor
woul d constitute a substantial detrinent to the public good.
The public good is defined to ne as affecting, froma zoni ng
st andpoi nt, the health, safety, and welfare of the
surroundi ng properties. And in this particular case and by
and large what we |look at is inpacts related to light and
air, and it conmes to height and policy to a certain degree,
dependi ng on the type of case.

So based on the widths of the alley surrounding
the property, one is 10 feet, one is 15 feet, the other one
| believe is 30 feet. It will take -- respectively. The set
back they've proposed of second floor fromthe alleys which
woul d be roughly 15 feet away from the property |ines of
surrounding -- to the north and south property. The proposed
addi tion would not have a substantial inpact on Iight and
air. And the applicant has submtted shadow st udi es show ng
no adverse inpact and nost of the inpact based on the shadow
studies would be during the autumal equinox, so in
Septenber. So it doesn't seemlike it woul d be a substanti al
i npact fromthe light and air standpoint.

Now noving to the other prongs, I'Il start with
the third prong, the intent and purpose and integrity of the
zoni ng regul ati ons. First part, this is zoned RF-1 which
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does allow for this type of nanme use to be contenpl ated
within the alley. So that's not so nuch of an issue.
Regarding the alley lot, the requested area
variance related to the alley |ot provisions, the intent of
the height provisions is stated wthin the Ofice of
Planning's staff report. And | conpletely agree wwth their
positioning on the purpose and the intent of the alley |ot.
HPRB's vision is to ensure that alley lot dwellings are
easily that would be in an alley would be of a secondary
nature to the primary buildings that are along a street
frontage. And to ne, that is to protect the character, the
scal e and character of the surroundi ng nei ghbor hood.
Commonl y, which we commonly take a | ook at when
we' re | ooki ng at properties that face on primary streets that
are looking to alter the architectural roof elenments or to
construct sone type of pop-up, what we're looking at is
whet her it would substantially affect the character of the

nei ghbor hood, and | believe that's the reason for the intent

of the alley lot provision, |I nmean the alley |ot height
provi si on. So in that, | do not believe that the area
vari ance being requested woul d neet the intent of the zoning

regul ations that restrict the alley height, | nean the alley
| ot height to 20 feet. So | do not believe it neets the
i ntent.

Regarding the first prong, | did struggle with
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this one. And to ne, it's nore of a 50-50 question. The
question regarding the substantial situation of this matter
has to do with the zoning requirenents for the 20-foot
height, the alley lot buildings cause such a practical
hardship for the applicant to be able to effectively use the
property for a dwelling unit.

As you stated, the applicant can use effectively
this property for a dwelling unit. This is a 7500 square
foot building. They're not required to go to a second fl oor
In order to reasonably use the existing building as it is
now. | get that it is a warehouse, but warehouses within the
District are commonly converted to residential all the tine.
So | struggle with the other argunents that were made by the
applicant regardi ng redesigning or altering the wi ndows nay
pose an issue for Historic Preservation's standpoint. And
al so, the renoval of the concrete roof would inpair the
hi storic character of the existing warehouse. It is a roof.
It's not sonething that can be seen fromthe street and it's
not sonething based on the Ofice of Planning's staff or
that was contenplated by HPO. They're nore concerned wth
what the exterior -- what you would see fromthe -— fromeye
| evel .

| woul d, however, state that the applicant has
subm tted docunentation from the engineer to nodify the
existing w ndows for bedroons to be co-conpliant could
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conprom se the integrity of the structure with to ne is the
primary cause for the applicant to neet the first prong of
the variance test. So | do believe that they may potentially
-- | believe on its face may neet the essential situational
factor of difficulty, but some of the other concerns that
were raised by the applicant | find very spurious.

So wth that, I do not believe that the applicant
has nmet all three of the various prongs and woul d reconmend
deni al of the variance request.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Thank you. M. Bl ake?

MEMBER BLAKE: Thank you, M. Chair. | agree with
the comments made by M. Smith. |, too, will take a second
and just take a |look at the prongs of the test and ny read
on that.

| do believe that the applicant initially lists
a confluence of factors contributing to a unique situation.
| think it's a very large building, whichit is. It's a very
large lot for an alley lot, which it is. Those are not
unique and | think the O fice of Planning pointed that out
inits original report.

The fact that it's onthree alleys is a factor and
-- but the nost distinguishing factor which really does, |
think, hinge on the uniqueness of this property and the
practical difficulty really relates to the roof and the
support structure. So the key here is that it's a 500-ton
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concrete roof that according to a |icensed engi neer, which
Is in Exhibit 36A, provides evidence of extraordinary and
exceptional condition because renoval or alteration of this
roof, according to that, would potentially have sone i npact
on the structural integrity of the property, of the building,
the walls, and so forth. And the key part of this, as | | ook
at it is, is that the garage |light structure and the three
doors on the south side are the critical, historical el enent,
not necessarily the roof. But the roof structure is
historical in sone regards, but it is not the defining
feature of this building.

Anyway, assum ng that's the case, when | | ook at
this, | do believe that it does create a practical difficulty
in having a two-story building in that in order to renove
this 500-ton concrete roof, it's going to cause a |lot of
problems and it could potentially adversely inpact the
structure. So trying to create a structure that fits within
the 20-foot range would be difficult, and so | do think
there's a practical difficulty with regards to that.

The report also indicated that it also mght be
a risk of a structural integrity of doing the |ower floor
wi ndows. Now if | assunme that the practical difficulty is
with the second story, | don't necessarily think there's a
practical difficulty in reasonably using this property for
a residential building because | do believe the first floor
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still represents an opportunity.

| findit hard to believe -- again, the practi cal
difficulty is established by the engineer, although | would
have |oved to have seen sone nore backup data to support
that. I'mgoing to go with that, but |I do believe that --
| can understand where it could be a practical difficulty in
rai sing the roof. | do see it as being not part of the
practical difficulty in putting in windows for a bedroom
| don't think that that's a practical difficulty. W' ve seen
in this building where if you look at the walls, it's been
ri pped out many times, openings have been opened, they've
been cl osed, bricked over. | mean they've done a lot with
this. And if you can tell ne you can put a 2100 square foot
addition on top of this roof | suspect putting windows inis
not going to tear it down.

But | do think that again, | do think a second
story mght be challenging. The main issues that the
applicant puts out with the practical difficulty in doingthe
| oner level is the fact of security, the fact that nost of
the -- | guess the south, west, and north portions of the
bui |l di ng are on public property, or border on alleys, and it
makes it difficult to put windows in to do that. It's
i nteresting because as Board Menber Smith pointed out, those
alleys are different in size.

For exanple, the south alley is 30 feet. The west
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alley, | believe is 15 and the north alley is 10. The west
alley certainly is chal l engi ng because there's traffic going
t hrough there periodically. But what's interesting about the
north alley isit's a pedestrian alley, it's Archibald Court.
It's not a very highly populated thing. Has no cars or
anything like that. |It's nore |like a wal kway than an act ual
alley, so it does have -- it doesn't have the sane risk
profile | think that the south m ght have and it doesn't have
the architectural inportance of the south side.

It is possible to put wndows on that side from
what | can see and | think that suggests to nme that there's
a possibility the argunment nmade by the applicant focuses on
the fact that they can't put bars on the w ndows, that it
woul dn't wor K. | suspect that given the nunber of alley
dwellings in the city and dwellings that are bel ow ground,
above grade, at grade, there's probably sone nerit to that,
the bars working. And | did review the docunents put in by
t he applicant on the bars and I am not persuaded by that to
bel i eve that bars aren't possible.

| also think that the applicant pointed out that
it was not possible to do windows on the -- let's see, on the
east side because it would be near the applicant's -- the
nei ghbor who had concerns about privacy. M concern there
was that the privacy issue could be resolved if the pure
I ssue was egress, you could put a window in there that had
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frosted panes which would elimnate -- and not facing the
property of the neighbor, and you could then make it sort of
accessible, on private property, accessible, and it would
al so deal wth the privacy issue for the adjacent nei ghbor.
So | think there were sone solutions. That's obviously a
very -- one exanple, but | think there are a | ot of exanples
of ways that creatively they could address the issues that
m ght allow themto make this happen.

Again, ny biggest issueis | findit hard -- | do
believe there is maybe sone structural challenges wth
putting on by right second level at 20 feet. | feel, for a
| ot of reasons, including even the doors and how t hey woul d
go through Historical, but when | think about the i dea of you
cannot put wi ndows on the first floor because of structural
integrity, | find that very hard to accept. However, 1']
accept that first problemof the practical difficulty based
on the evidence presented by the applicant fromthe |icensed
engi neer. There's nothing in the record that says ot herw se
to contradict that.

As you | ook to the second prong, | do believe the
applicant has used the shadow studies and setbacks and so
forth. Wen we typically |ook at that prong, we do | ook at
-- as what Menber Smith pointed out, health, public welfare
and surrounding properties. And it's very simlar to the
test we use in our typical special exceptions. W |ook at
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the light, air flow, and privacy of use.

The other thing we typically | ook at, too, is the
I npact that it mght have on visual intrusion. Now that's
less of an extent in this, but nore so in a practical
exception. And | believe that the support -- the information
we got fromthe HPO or the HPRB real | y does support the fact
that this is conpatible with the neighborhood. So | would
argue that froma visual intrusion standpoint, it too would
be acceptable. But this isn't a special exception and we're
not | ooking at that clause. So | think that -- but that is
supported, so | think to a |arge extent the second prong is
addr essed.

The third prong which is the intent is very
difficult -- in sonme ways difficult to assess because it's
not spelled out in the regulations specifically that this is
the intent of the regulations. | think that the Ofice of
Pl anni ng provi ded sone very good insights as to the process
for the amendnent which tightened regul ations, which said
clearly the objective is to be subordinate to the street-
facing properties. And in this case, clearly a 5,000 foot,
with the addition of 7500 square foot property of 2 stories
of 28 feet would certainly not be subordinate to the street-
facing properties. It would be on par and i n many i nstances
much bi gger because a lot of the homes in this area are
significantly smaller than that. So for that reason | do
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believe that the third prong i s not consistent or not net by
t he applicant.

| would al so say | had sone concerns when | heard
this case to look at the interaction with the community and
particularly wwth the | ocal residents, inmmedi ate residents.
One of the things that was very clear is that they were not
happy with it and they felt it really had an i npact on t hem
| agree that we have established t hrough our shadow space and
so forth that they are not adversely affected, but | do think
that they may well be -- they may wel | be adversely affected,
but the evidence suggests otherw se.

| do think that there may have been a |ack of
comruni cati on between the applicant and those neighbors
because | think some solutions could have been possible. |
think in sonme testinony | recall hearing, the applicant
i ndicated that it was just an i npasse and they woul d not | et
us have the second floor. That nay be the case, but our goal
is to have a reasonabl e use of the property for permtted use
and | think that that could be acconpli shed.

So again, | do not feel the -- | do not believe
the third prong was net as well. That's all

BZA CHAI R HI LL: Thank you, M. Bl ake. Dr .
| manur a?

COW SS|I ONER | MAMURA: Thank you, M. Chairnan.
| want to thank Board Menber Sm th and Board Menber Bl ake for
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their thorough analysis. As al ways, very pragmatic and
critical view

| struggled with this case. Certainly Board
Menmber Smith, it's interesting | think, said nunmber two,
prongs nunber two, three were net, but not nunber one. Board
Menber Blake, | think if | got this right, prong nunber one
was nmet and not prong nunber three. | wasn't sure about
prong nunber two. | think he said that's net too, but.

| align nyself with the comments of Board Menber
Bl ake, the mpjority of his comrents. Area variances are
difficult. W have a responsibility, as you've pointed out
to nme, M. Chairnman, we have a responsibility to apply the
regul ati ons as BZA But | also think with that we have
anot her responsibility which is kind of in the gray area.
So we know that HPRB, the HPO O fice, has said that this fits
in with the character of scale and pattern of the
nei ghbor hood, the surroundi ng nei ghbors. So they certainly
are the authority of that of the Capitol Hill Historic
District. So it's less about really the steps which has
al ready been deliberated on by the HPRB and then our
responsibility to apply the zoning regul ati ons.

But we also have this additional responsibility
to take a |l ook at our building stock, and particularly for
hi storic buildings, to advance the preservation ethic and
| ook at ways to adaptively renew sone of these historic
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properties to bring theminto good repair so that they don't
fall further into disrepair in their surroundi ng
nei ghbor hood. So regardless of the interior programof this
bui | di ng, sonebody had a vision and it's a creative vision.
Whet her there's a gym interior courtyard, whatever there
m ght be, that's really the ower's preference. But really
it's about, | think big picture thinking, there's a
responsibility here to take a | ook at how can we fi nd bal ance
with the zoni ng regul ati ons and the opportunity to be -- for
adaptive reasons and sensitive intervention to advance
hi storic preservation.

So | think Board Menmber Smith pointed out, the

exceptional situation here, the engineer's |letter about the

roof structure, that's very clear to ne. | do agree that
there still mght be sone opportunity or ways to instal
wi ndow openings on the ground fl oor. However, that does

possi bly inpact the historic character and uni que features
to this construction, especially with the existing headers
that are there. So | think the architect has done a fine job
in terms of -- and HPRB certainly has commented so that it
is conpatible with the proposed openi ngs and where they are.

Board Menber Bl ake brought up a good poi nt about
the risk profile being nmuch |ower, Archibald Court. ' m
certainly in agreenent with that. |1'mnot sure that | fully
agree with the architect's argunent that security bars pose
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an addi ti onal encunbrance for fire egress. You see themall
over the city. That said, | still think that there nmay be
a way to nove this forward.

Again, it's not about the programof this space.
And yes, we have a responsibility to apply the zoning
regul ati ons, but when it neets historic preservation, this
Is where our body politic has an opportunity to give
addi ti onal consi deration. So with that, | believe that |
think this mght be one of those nonents, and |'m al ways
cautious and | think I have a record of being careful about
setting precedent. | certainly wouldn't want to set
precedent here. But | think this is unique enough and t hat
this is a one-off circunstance, but there are nuances to this
particular location that it does not set a precedent.

That's where | am M. Chairnan. ' m not sure
that | was able to fully convince Board Menber Smith, but I
certainly hope so and that this lies in a gray area and that
we have a responsibility to look at ways to inprove the
fabric of our city bringing all buildings into good repair.
So that's where | am M. Chairnman.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Gkay. Thanks, Dr. | manura.

Vice Chair John?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JOHN: Thank you, M. Chairman.
So | agree with the conmments so far of Board Menbers Bl ake
and Smith. | understand the angst of Comm ssioner | manura,
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but first off, | don't believe that the Board can outsource
Its zoning authority to HPRB. And |'ve said this many ti nes.
| think that in this particular case, the issue is whether
there's a practical difficulty because of the exceptional
conditions, which | agree are there. And the test is whether
or not the applicant is able to nake reasonabl e use of the
property, in this case as a residence.

| am not convinced that this residence cannot be
constructed to add usable w ndows, either in the areas that
were originally located. It would just be different sorts
of wi ndows and t he applicant woul d have to buil d around t hat.
| mean |'mnot an architect, but | am-- | nmean | just cannot
believe, notwithstanding what is in the record, that there
can't be usable windows in this building. And | note that
the applicant is renoving portions of the building for other
reasons, so whether or not that conplies with HPRB, | would
j ust question whether or not if it's okay to renove portions
of the building for other reasons. Certainly the applicant
shoul d be able to put in appropriate wi ndows for a residence.
And t hat happens all over the city with these added dwel | i ngs
and even with sonetimes corner-store buildings that are
constructed, buildings where there is a corner store use that
have been converted to a resi dence and you see these all over
the city.

But nore inportantly, | believe, | agreewith OP's
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statenent that the height variance, which is what the
applicant is seeking, and | think I'mcorrect in saying that
the request is for 28 feet, which is 6 feet higher than
what's allowed by the regul ation. So | agree with OP's
statenent that the height variance would be contrary to the
intent of the alley lot regulations to ensure that alley
dwellings are secondary in scale to the street-fronting
properties. And the applicant didn't show us any properties
in the alley that were close to 24 feet or 28 feet. The
applicant showed us street-facing properties, and | forget
the particular exhibit, but it showed that the properties
that were nmuch higher were not alley | ot dwellings.

So | amnot in support of this application because
| believe there is no practical difficulty in mking
reasonabl e use of the property as a residence.

Thank you, M. Chairman.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Ckay, thank you, Vice Chair John.

kay, so after hearing everyone's comrentary, is
there anything anyone would like to add before | nake a
not i on?

Sure, go ahead, Dr. | nmanura.

COW SSI ONER | MAMURA: Thank you, M. Chairnman.
| just want to take the opportunity to underscore that
what ever position | take on the vocal vote here and ny point
about HPRB suggesting that the design is conpatible,
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certainly not inplying that we outsource to BZA Board. Quite
the contrary. There's a reason that it conmes to the BZA
after it's already reviewed by HPRB, but that we have even
greater authority and responsibility and obligation and
ethical responsibility, not just to apply the zoning
regul ations, but also to think nore holistically and
conprehensi vely about the historic fabric this is.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Ckay. Thanks, Dr. | manura.
Anyone el se?

Ckay. I'"'m going to nmake a notion to deny
Application No. 21098 as captioned and read by the Secretary

and ask for a second.

Ms. John?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  Second.

BZA CHAIR HILL: The notion has been nmade and
seconded.

Ms. Mehlert, can you take a roll call?

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Pl ease respond to the chair's
notion to deny the application.

Chairman Hill?

BZA CHAIR HILL: Yes.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Vice Chair John?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  Yes.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Board Menber Smith?

MEMBER SM TH:  Yes.
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SECRETARY MEHLERT: Board Menber Bl ake?

MEMBER BLAKE: Yes.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Dr. | nmanura?

COW SSI ONER | MAMURA:  I'"m going to do what the
chairman did for a case a while back and |I'm going to
abst ai n.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Abstain?

COW SSI ONER | MAMURA:  Yes.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Staff would record the vote
as 4 to 0to 1 to deny Application 21098 on the notion nade

by Chairman Hill and seconded by Vice Chair John with one
abstenti on.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Ckay. Thank you. All right,
we're going to just keep chuggi ng al ong here.

Dr. Imamura, is that it for you?

COW SSI ONER | MAMURA:  That's it for ne.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Thank you. Thank you.

COW SSI ONER | MAMURA:  Thank you, M. Chairman.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Thank you.

COW SSI ONER | MAMURA: Have a great week,
ever ybody.

BZA CHAIR HILL: And you as well. So now we have
Chai rman Hood, | beli eve.

COW SSI ONER  HOQOD: Sorry, |I'm here. Good

mor ni ng, everyone.
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BZA CHAI R HILL: Good norning, Chairman Hood.
Thank you for joining us.

Al right, Ms. Mehlert, if you want to call our
next itenf

SECRETARY MEHLERT: This is Application No. 20802
of 639A, LLC. This is a notion pursuant to Subtitle Y,
Section 701 to Stay Effectiveness of the Board's order for
the Application No. 20802 issued on Decenber 5th, 2022,
pendi ng a deci sion and order by D.C. Court of Appeals in D.C
Appeal No. 22AA0942. The subject project is a two-story
accessory structure with a dwelling unit in the rear yard of
an exi sting two-story sem -detached principal dwelling. It's
| ocated in RF-1 zone at 639 A Street, SE, Square 870, Lot
113.

BZA CHAIR HILL: Ckay. |I'mnot really clear where
we are with this one.

Ms. Mehlert, is the person putting forward the

stay with us?

SECRETARY MEHLERT: | believe they are on the
cal I.

BZA CHAIR HILL: Ckay. |If you maybe could bring
them forward because | have a question for them

MR YOUNG Who is it?
SECRETARY MEHLERT: M. Tolliver.

BZA CHAIR HILL: Ch, M. Tolliver. Charl es
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Tol |i ver.

MR TOLLIVER |Is everyone able to hear ne?

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Yes. M. Tolliver, could you
I ntroduce yourself for the record?

MR TOLLI VER: Absol utel y. Good norni ng,
Chai rman, Comm ssioners, Board Menbers, and staff. M nane
Is Attorney Charles Tolliver and |I'm appearing on behal f of
Petitioner Enise Han in ny official capacity and ny address
Is 1717 K Street, NW Suite 900, Washington, D.C.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Thank you, M. Tolliver.

M. Tolliver, what | was confused about is |like is there an
appeal or has the appeal been dism ssed?

MR,  TOLLI VER Thank you so nmuch for the
opportunity to respond to that question. W were going to
bring that up as a prelimnary natter, but you are correct.
The appeal with the D.C. Court of Appeals was dism ssed on
procedural grounds. Nevertheless, we believe that BZA still
retains jurisdiction and authority pursuant to Subtitle
Section 602.4 or Subtitle 701. 2.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Okay. But | guess what would we
be staying for? Like what is it that is still outstanding?

MR, TOLLIVER O course. So the petitioner would
essentially ask that the Board grant the notion to stay and
reopen the record to conduct a further hearing on designated
areas, specifically whether or not there was a failure or

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1716 14TH ST., N.W,, STE 200
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20009-4309 www.nealrgross.com




A wWwN

o O

~l

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

56

defect of the notice of the public hearing pursuant to
Section 402.11 and whether the construction, renovation, or
alterations as being carried out in accordance with the pl ans
approved by the Board pursuant to subsection Y, sorry,
Subtitle Y, Section 604.10.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Okay. Does the Board have any
questions of M. Tolliver?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JOHN: M. Chairnan, | don't know
I f | have a question, but M. Tolliver, there is no order in
pl ace. There's nothing to stay. | think what you m ght be
asking for is nore properly -- well, | guess you're asking
for a new application and there's nothing in the record
concerning a new application. There really is nothing to
st ay.

MR, TOLLIVER: Ms. John, | believe we were taking
t he approach that the final order dated Decenber 5th, 2022
and that's how this sort of initially began with appealing
to the D.C. Court of Appeals, but | agree wth vyour
assessnment as wel | .

BZA CHAIR HILL: Ckay. Does anybody have any
ot her questions for M. Tolliver?

kay, M. Tolliver, thank you for joining us. |I'm
going to excuse you fromthe hearing.

MR, TOLLI VER: Thank you so nuch.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Ckay. | again, don't -- it's
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unclear to nme what exactly there is to stay and so | would
just deny this notion to stay.

M. Bl ake, do you have any comments?

VMEMBER BLAKE: | agree, M. Chairnman. There's
nothing to stay, but is it appropriate to dism ss or deny?
| don't know the answer to that question.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: | think it's either way. W can

dismss as noot, but | will wait to hear fromny other board

menbers.

Vi ce Chair John?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JOHN: | would just deny the
noti on. If the lawers think it should be dism ssed, then

| guess they can correct us, but | think we either grant the
notion or not and we're saying we're denying the notion, |
guess because it's noot because there is no order that can
be stayed. So that's mny deci sion.

BZA CHAIR HILL: Oay. M. Snmith, are you with
us on this one?

MEMBER SMTH. |'mnot with you all on this one.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Gkay. Chairnmn Hood?

COWM SSI ONER HOOD: |, too, woul d agree with what
| heard all ny coll eagues say. | wouldn't even consider it.
| think they went to the court. The way | look at it, |ike

you say, there's nothing there, so | don't know what we're
even doing, so | don't even know why -- | don't think it's
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properly before us and I'll leave it at that. Thank you, M.
Chai r man.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Ckay, well, 1'm going go al ong
with Vice Chair John. [|'mgoing to nake a notion to deny and
then if the attorneys think that it should be dism ssed, we
can figure that out as well, how they want to wite it.

"' mgoing to nmake a notion to deny the notion to

stay of Application 20802A and ask for a second.

Ms. John?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  Second.

BZA CHAIR HILL: Motion has been nmade and
seconded.

Madam Secretary, if you could take a roll call?

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Pl ease respond to the chair's
notion to deny the notion to stay.

Chairman Hill?

BZA CHAIR HILL: Yes.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Vice Chair John?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  Yes.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Board Menber Bl ake?

MEMBER BLAKE: Yes.

SECRETARY MEHLERT:  Chai r man Hood?

CHAI RMVAN HOOD:  Yes.

SECRETARY MEHLERT: Staff would record the vote
as 4 to 0 to 1 to deny the notion to stay in Application
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20802 on the notion made by Chairman H Il and seconded by
Vice Chair John with one board nenber not participating.

BZA CHAIR H LL: GOkay. M. Smth, are you back
W th us?

Okay, Madam Secretary, you can call our next item
Ms. Mehlert, will you please call our next itenf

MS. MEHLERT: Next in the neeting session is
Appl i cation Nunber 21157 of 3528 O Street, LLC. This is a
self-certified application pursuant to Subtitle X
Section 901.2, for a special exception under Subtitle U,
Section 254.14, to allow corner store use, and pursuant to
Subtitle X, Section 1002, for an area variance from the
| ocation requirenents of Subtitle U, Section 254.6(qQ).

This is for a corner store use operated as a
prepared food shop on the first floor and basenent of an
existing two-story building with residential use on the
second floor. It is located in the R 3/GI zone at 3428 O
Street, Northwest, Square 1228, Lot 76.

The hearing for this case began on June 12th and
was continued to Septenber 25th, and participating are
Chairman Hill, Vice Chair John, M. Blake, M. Smth, and
Chai r man Hood.

And today before the Board are two notions
subm tted by Melinda Roth, one of the parties in opposition.
First is a notion to strike the applicant’s video and
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pictorial evidence filed on June 24th, and second is a notion
to rescind the party status in support of Christopher
Itteilag filed on July 8'".

BZA CHAIR HILL: Ckay. Are you all ready to
di scuss? Ckay.

VI CE CHAlI RPERSON JOHN:  Yes.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: | can start. | guess, again,
these two notions are before us. The first one, the notion
to strike, | think I also mght have confused the request.
Wen we heard this hearing, during rebuttal there was
phot ographs put forward in rebuttal responding to comments
that were nmade in the hearing by the party in opposition.

And then the applicant al so was speaki ng about a
video, and they said that they didn't put the video in
because t hey t hought that video was not allowed to be in the
record. And so what | clarified was that it’s -- well, then
we took a -- then we took a break to talk to counsel because
| wasn’t clear as to what we were or were not able to do.

And after speaking with counsel and then we cane
back, we determned that on rebuttal it was perfectly
acceptable for the applicant to offer rebuttal testinony to
what had been spoken before about the trash bins. | don’t
think that it necessarily nmeans that -- well, anyway, so then
| asked -- then the video question cane up, and | was trying
to clarify that, as | read every Wdnesday, it’s not the
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video -- there is -- you know, |’ve been -- |’ve been also
now getting this for quite sone tine, which was before the
pandem c. And there were -- there was video that was al | owed
into the record.

Now what happened si nce the pandem ¢ and si nce we
went virtual is that at the very beginning of this process,
experinment, people would turn their conputer around and show
the thing that was next to their house or whatever it was.
So that was the live video that was not allowed into the
record. |’ m sorry, was not allowed to be used as part of
t esti nony.

So then | clarified with the applicant saying,
“You can submit video,” and then they did not submt the
video. | haven't seen the video. | didn't think the video
was submtted, right?

So interns of the exhibits that have phot ographic

responses to the testinony inrebuttal, | think that they are
appropriate, and | think that they are in the record. I
think that we have seen it. | don't think they need to be

hi ghl i ghted, but | think that they are appropriately in the
record. So | would not agree to strike the photographs.

But, at this point, | don’'t need any video. So,
you know, the record is closed. | would agree with the party
putting the notion forward |I guess that we don’'t need any
video, so | would not be inclined to have vi deo.
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In terns of the -- rescinding the party status
| ssue, what | was also rem nded of was that there is really
no basis in the regulation to rescind the party status.
There is nothing in the regulations that say this. And | do
think that the Board correctly gave party status to -- |et
me just |look for the nanme here real quick.

MEMBER SM TH:  Chri st opher.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Sorry. Yeah. Christopher -- I'm
goi ng to not pronounce it right -- Illeitag or Illeilag. And
that that person was actually across the street from the
application. And as we have kind of tal ked about now wth,
like, these type of applications that have a retail
conponent, we tend to think that nore people are affected
because there is a retail conponent.

And that’'s also how we gave the person in
opposition party status. That person is a few doors down,
and this person is across the street. So | think they both
have the sanme argunent, and so | would not be in favor of
rescinding the party status, even though there’s really no
basis in the regulation for us to do so.

So those are ny thoughts, and | wll turn to
M. Smth.

MEMBER SMTH. Chairman Hill, | agree with your
approach to this particular request regarding the pending
noti ons.
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Regarding the -- well, first off, I wll say that
we had a full record, and part of that particular record, as
presented by the parties in opposition to this particul ar
case, related to trash. And a big part of that discussion
related to trash in the outdoor receptacle. What was
presented at the hearing when we heard this was a rebuttal
by the -- by the applicant regarding private use of those
trash cans by the applicant. And one of the rebuttals was --
Is notated in the pictures that were submtted within the
record.

| do believe that the pictures that were subm tted
in the record were submitted as part of rebutting the party
i n opposition’s case, and | think it was properly submtted.
Sol’mnot inclined to strike the pictures, but I aminclined
to strike the videos. As |’'ve stated, we have a full record,
and we can deliberate on the issue that -- the i ssue that has
been rai sed regardi ng t he uses of these trash cans during our
del i berati on.

When this case returns back for our discussionin
fall, or towards the end of the sumrer anyway, regarding the
ot her request, | agree with you on what the other request

was, to rescind the party status. As you stated previously,

we do not have any -- it’'s fairly silent within the record
on when we should rescind party status. But | do believe
that we, as you stated, granted the party status given the
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| ocation -- and this is regarding M. Itteilag -- we granted
him the party status because of his -- he lives fairly
proxi mte to the case at hand.

So | believe that he -- we granted that justly,

and I’ mnot inclined to rescind his party status. So | agree

wth your -- with your approach for both of these cases.
BZA CHAIR HILL: Ckay. Al right. | ve been
rem nded of a clarification, that the record is still open

| guess due to this being a continued hearing. So --

MEMBER SM TH:  That’s right. Yeah.

BZA CHAI R HI LL: Ri ght . So, but so | nmade an
error internms of, like, closing the record. | -- you know,
we can | guess -- and |1'd ask for anyone from Legal to
correct neif I’mwong, but we can nowclarify that we don’t
need the video or want the video. So that |’ m not sure of,
and maybe Legal, if they wanted to speak up and | et nme know,
t hey coul d say sonet hi ng.

But go ahead, M. Bl ake.

MEMBER BLAKE: Yeah. M. Chair, first of all, |
would say that, as relates to this video/non-video, as |
recall, there were still pictures of -- during the day of

Ms. Roth putting trash in the garbage can.

In the evening, they were still -- but that was
a video for -- recorded from like, a Ring bell or sonething,
but those were still fromthat video of that in the mddle
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of the night. So | believe that, fromny interpretation
that was the video, but it was presented in stills as opposed
to as a video, and the significance there was that it was in
the mddle of the night and it was to nake cl ear where the --

where it canme from

Sol -- that’s what ny interpretati on was on t hat,
and | wasn’t sure there was yet another actual |ive video
that was to be released. But, if there was, then |’ m
m st aken. But that was ny interpretation of those two
phot os. One was during the day, and one was at 1:30 -- |ike
1:30 in the norning or sonething |ike that.

But | believe, though -- just to be clear onthis,
| believe that the applicant’s argunment that the rebuttal
evidence is directly relevant to the issues under
consideration is accurate. | thinkit’s adm ssible. | think
that Ms. Roth had pointed out that what we saw can’t be
unseen, and | believe the Board has the ability to interpret

the material in the record and give it the weight that is

war r ant ed.

|, therefore, think | would vote to deny that
not i on.

As it relates to the party status, to rescinding
the party status of M. Itteilag, he was granted party status

by the Board in accordance with the criteria specified in
Subtitle Y, 404, for a lot of the sane reasons that she
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ultimately received party status. So, for that reason, | do
bel i eve that he was properly accorded party status.

| al so question the fact that | do not believe in
the zoning regulations there is a part that provides for an
opponent or any other party to object to party status other
than the ANC and the applicant. So, for that reason, | don’t
bel i eve she has standing to do that. |In either case, | would
vote to deny that notion to rescind as well.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Gkay. Thank you.

Vi ce Chair John?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JOHN: Thank you, M. Chairman.
| don’t have a lot to add to what has been said. | believe
the party status was properly granted based on the sane
criteria that the party in opposition is requesting. They
are about the same distance.

As a matter of fact, |I’mgoing to m spronounce his
name, so |'m just going to say the gentlenman across the
street is probably closer to the property in question as the
party in opposition.

So, and | agree that there is no regul ation that
| have seen that would allow the party in opposition to at
t hi s point request that the Board should rescind its original
decision. | agree also with everyone el se that the videos --
that the still photographs in the record which were
phot ographs that were taken froma Ring canera were properly
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admtted as rebuttal testinony.

Al so, the person who owned the R ng canera and who
offered the photographs testified and was able to
authenticate the still pictures and note that they were from
his Ring canera, and that person was also identified -- able
to identify the individual in the photograph.

So, with all of that, | would deny both notions,
both the notion to strike and the notion to rescind party
st at us.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Gkay. Thank you.

Chai r man Hood?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: | would agree with all of the --
all of my coll eagues, particularly with all of the comments
of Comm ssioner Blake. So not to be redundant, | wll just

associ ate myself with Comm ssioner Blake’'s conments. Thank

you.

BZA CHAIR HILL: Thank you.

Al right. 1’mgoing to nake two notions. Then
we can vote on them | believe all | need to dois -- |ike,
| don’t need the video. |’mthe one who asked for the video
where it clarified about the video. | don’t need the video.

So, MadamSecretary, if the video gets entered in,
please don’t let it into the record unless they want to
submt something that says they need to let it into the
record. Now, it was -- it was -- | forget when that hearing
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was. The hearing was sone tine ago. So, but -- so |I’mnot
-- | don’t even need to tal k about the video. | don’t need
it. | don’t -- you can just |eave it out.

In ternms of this notion for the photographs, | am
going to make a notion to deny the notion to strike the
phot ographic itens that are in the record as requested by the
party in opposition and ask for a second, M. John.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  Second.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Mbdtion nade and seconded.

Ms. Mehlert, if you could take a roll call?

MS. MEHLERT: Pl ease respondto the Chair’s notion
to deny the notion to strike the photographs in the record.

Chairman Hill?

BZA CHAIR HILL: Yes.

M5. MEHLERT: Vice Chair John?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  Yes.

MS. MEHLERT: M. Smth?

MEMBER SM TH:  Yes.

MS. MEHLERT: M. Bl ake?

MEMBER BLAKE: Yes.

M5. MEHLERT: Chairnman Hood?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Yes.

M5. MEHLERT: Staff would record the vote as five
to zero to zero to deny the notion to stri ke photo evidence
in the record on the notion nade by Chairman Hill and
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seconded by Vice Chair John.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: GCkay. Thank you. 1'mgoing to
make a separate notion, then, to deny the notion to rescind
the party status as put forward by the party in opposition
and ask for a second, Ms. John.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JCOHN:  Second.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Mbdtion nade and seconded.

Ms. Mehlert, if you would take a roll call?

MS5. MEHLERT: Pl ease respondto the Chair’s notion
to deny the notion to rescind the party status.

Chairman Hill?

BZA CHAIR HILL: Yes.

M5. MEHLERT: Vice Chair John?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  Yes.

MS. MEHLERT: M. Smth?

MEMBER SM TH:  Yes.

MS. MEHLERT: M. Bl ake?

MEMBER BLAKE: Yes.

M5. MEHLERT: Chairnman Hood?

ZC CHAI R HOOD: Yes.

M5. MEHLERT: Staff would record the vote as five
to zero to zero to deny the notion to rescind party status
on the notion made by Chairman Hi Il and seconded by Vice
Chai r John.

BZA CHAIR HILL: kay. Thank you.
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So, you guys, can we -- | just want to take a
break actually. | don’t know if you -- | don’t know what
we’'re going to do in terns of lunch, to be quite honest. |
mean, there is -- there is still | guess quite a few itens
that we’re going to have, so | guess maybe we’'ll end up
t aki ng | unch.

But isit all right if we just take a quick break?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JOHN: And, M. Chairman, you

would want to do lunch at this time? It’'s 12:18.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Yeah, sure. Ckay. If that's
what -- do you -- | guess that’s nmy question. Do you guys
want to do |lunch? Do you want to cone -- | nean, | -- okay.
Let me start again.

There is advance party status, party status
request. GCkay. So let’s take lunch. Okay? W’ Il go ahead
and take lunch. W’IIl conme back at -- let’s try 1:00.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  Thank you.

BZA CHAIR HILL: kay? Thank you.

(Wher eupon, the above-entitled matter went of f the
record.)

BZA CHAIR HILL: Al right. Secretary Mehlert,
can you call us back and call our next issue?

M5. MEHLERT: The Board is back fromtheir |unch
recess, and the next case in the nmeeting session is a party

status request in Application Nunber 21151 of Dinesh Tandon
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and Ni dhi Tandon.

This is a self-certified application pursuant to
Subtitle X, Section 901.2, for a special exception under
Subtitle C, Section 204.9, to allow a change from a
nonconf orm ng use to anot her nonconform ng use, and pursuant
to Subtitle X, Section 1002, for an area variance from
Subtitle C, Section 204.9(b), to allow non-residential use.

This is a change in the nonconform ng use of the
first floor and cellar in an existing two-story building from
retail convenience store to a restaurant. |It’s located in
the RF-1 zone at 2324 North Capitol Street, Northwest,
Square 3124, Lot 143.

Previ ously, the Board, on July 3rd, denied Pam
Mendel son’s request for party status in opposition. On
July 18th, the Board granted -- or July 17th, rather, the
Board granted Evelyn Brown’s request for party status in
opposition. And the hearing itself has been postponed at the
applicant’s request to Cctober 9th.

And before the Board today are three requests for
party status in opposition -- Mlini Tolat, R chard Smth,
and Maya Kaval er.

BZA CHAIR HILL: Okay. Geat.

M. Young, could you bring in the participants?

kay. Geat. M. Tolat, can you hear ne?

M5. TOLAT: Yes. Yes, | can.
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BZA CHAIR HI LL: GCkay. Geat. GCkay. Could you
-- could you introduce yourself for the record, please?

M5. TOLAT: Yeah. Sure. My nane is Malini Tol at.
| own and reside in 15 Bryant Street, Northwest, and |’ve
been here since 2017.

BZA CHAIR HILL: Ckay. And, |1’'m sorry, your
addr ess agai n?

M5, TOLAT: 1-5, 15 Bryant Street. I'm --

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Ckay.

M5. TOLAT: ~-- the first house on the -- the unit
bl ock of Bryant on the northwest side.

BZA CHAIR HILL: Okay. M. Smth, can you hear
me? M. Snmith, can you hear me? You're on -- you’'re on nute
| think, M. Smth. M. Smith, can you hear nme? Can you
just nod? You' re on nute | think, sir.

Can you all hear ne?

MEMBER SM TH: | can hear you. | don’t know if

he can hear us.

BZACHAIRHI LL: | don't think you -- | don't even
think it was -- | don’'t know if he knows his canmera is on.
M. Smith, can you hear ne? Okay. |I’'Il tell you

what. Just give ne a second.

M. Young, if you can think -- if you can figure
out howto get in touch with M. Smth or, M. Mhlert, if
you can try to call M. Smth.
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Ms. Kaval er, can you hear ne?

M5. KAVALER  Yes.

BZA CHAIR HILL: G eat . Coul d you introduce
yourself for the record?

M5. KAVALER H . |’'’mMya Kavaler. | own, live,
and work in -- at ny property, 8 Bryant Street, Northwest,
which is directly next to the property in question with just
the alley separating us.

BZA CHAIR H LL: Okay. Geat.

Do you all know Evelyn Brown? M. Kavaler, you
are noddi ng yes.

MS. KAVALER: Yes.

BZA CHAIR HILL: Ms. Tolat, you’ re noddi ng yes.

Okay. | forget where Ms. Brown’ s residence is.
Do you all renenber?

M5. KAVALER: | forget the exact nunber, but she
is on North Capitol, | think maybe two doors down fromthem

BZA CHAIR HILL: Okay. Geat.

M5. KAVALER: CQur alleys -- we share an alley, the
two of wus.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Ckay.

M5. TOLAT: Yeah. And I’mjust across the street,
just, you know, the first -- | nmean, little -- little -- not
exactly across, because there’'s the North Capitol house that
-- I"’mkind of diagonally across the street.
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BZA CHAIR H LL: Ckay. I'mstill trying to get
in touch wwth M. Smth there.
M5. TOLAT: He has been waiting all this tine, so

he 1s here.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: No, no. | see him | see him
| can't -- he doesn’'t seemto be able to respond.
M5. TOLAT: | can try and --

MR SMTH. Is that better?

BZA CHAIR H LL: Oh, there you go. Geat.

MR SMTH M apol ogi es.

BZACHAIRH LL: That’s all right. M. Smth, can

you introduce yourself for the record?

MR SMTH Yes. M nanme is Richard Smth. M
wife Janice and | live at 19 Bryant Street. W are
di agonal ly 25 yards fromthe -- what used to be the Sunbeam

Mar ket .
BZA CHAIR HILL: Gkay. Does the Board have any

questions of any of the party status requesters?

kay. So | guess I'Il just -- and I'IIl let ny
fell ow Board nmenbers kind of speak up. | nean, | know that
we granted party status to Ms. Evelyn Brown. And, M. Smth,

do you know Ms. Brown al so?

MR SM TH:  Yes.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: GCkay. So, you know, what | woul d
like to do is, M. Smth, | nean, | can understand part of
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the regulation -- |I'"m sorry. Under the criteria of party
status regulations, | would just -- | don’'t need to go into
the detail of it, but, Ms. Kavaler -- and I'msorry if |I'm
getting your |ast nanme wong -- but you're kind of |ike --

you're right across the alley fromwhere it is.

And then, Ms. Tolat, you're, you know, kind of
across the street fromwhere it is.

And, M. Smth, you're also kind of across the
street fromwhere it is. | mean, M. Smth, alittle bit --
you're kind of getting into the area where | don’t know if
| would say you are or aren’t as uniquely affected. But
since you're kind of with this group of neighbors, like --

MR SM TH:  Yes.

BZA CHAIR HILL: -- | would go ahead and ki nd of
grant you all party status, but then ask you all to work
together with Ms. Brown during your testinony. And so you
guys can kind of like work as a group to give us your
t esti nony.

And so what would happen is -- and I'Il let ny
fellow Board nenbers speak up after this if they have
anything to add or say -- is that as you have received party
status, that nmeans at the hearing you'll get to act as a
party, right, during the application process.

So that means that you will give your testinony
to the Board. You will also have an opportunity to ask

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1716 14TH ST., N.W,, STE 200
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20009-4309 www.nealrgross.com




A wWwN

o O

~l

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

76

questions of the applicant, ask questions of the Ofice of
Pl anni ng, ask questions -- | don’t know if the ANC is
participating or not in the hearing, but ask questions of all

of the other parties. kay?

And so you give a little -- you know, the
applicant wll give their presentation, usually the day
before the application or sonething like that. | don’t know
who is -- let ne see if | -- yeah.

Ckay. So there is an attorney that’s with us

quite often that usually gives a PowerPoint presentation to
their application. And that mght come in, |ike, the day
before or the day of, and so it’s hel pful to see what they
believe the zoning issues are and what they believe -- and
how they think they are going to neet the criteria for us to
grant the relief. Right?

Now, your opportunity will be to give us testinony
as to why you believe they are either not neeting the zoning
criteria, but you're not zoning attorneys, but if you, you
know, can follow along with also the Ofice of Planning, the
Ofice of Planning will submt a report, and the Ofice of
Planning’s report wll be nore directed to the zoning
criteria. kay?

So if you will excuse ne, there is an al armgoi ng
of f. Just one nonent.

(Pause.)
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BZA CHAIR HI LL: GCkay. Sorry. There was an al arm
goi ng off here.

So then you' |l have an opportunity to give your
presentation. And, again, you're not zoning attorneys, but
we'll -- we want to hear from you on, really, the zoning
| ssues, right? And so what the hope is is as you present as
a group, you can either determne who is going to be the
presenter, right, and then what testinony in terns of
W t nesses that you guys m ght give each other, right?

Li ke, you know, you m ght be a witness to this or
you mght be a witness to that or the person m ght give the
majority of the testinony and then you all m ght give your
own testinony, but only like a mnute or two, not repeating
any of the testinony that the main person gave. R ght?

Ckay. Does ny Board have any questions of the
party status people in request for party status?

Ckay. Do you all have any questions, meaning
party status requesters?

M5. TOLAT: | have a question.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Okay.

M5. TOLAT: So we saw the original proposal that
the applicants put in, and we have responded to that in
witing as well. So with the deferred Cctober hearing, are
they going to put in a new proposal? | guess |I'd like to
understand. You said the presentation m ght cone the sane
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day or the day before that. So is there -- wll we have an
opportunity to kind of see the -- | nean, | guess | wanted
to know if they will put in a new proposal or that’'s the --
that remains the sane.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Sur e. So, Ms. Tolat, |’ m not
sure what proposal got changed. Like we -- we haven't

studi ed the case yet, right?

M5. TOLAT: Ckay.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: And so, you know, | won't be
| ooki ng at this case until the week of the hearing or a week
before the hearing. And so, you know, you all will have a
chance to keep looking in the record. You know, | would
assune that -- and I don’t know if -- M. Mhlert, if you
guys know how they can get in touch with the applicant, do

we do that sonetimes? O | don’t even know.

MR SMTH. W actually have net the applicant,
and he invited us over to show us his |ayout.

BZA CHAIR H LL: ©Oh, okay. So then --

MR SMTH So --

BZA CHAIR HILL: So then, M. Smith --

MR SM TH: -- but still not the actual
construction of the inside of the store.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Ckay. So | guess, M. Smth,
what |’mtrying to get at is that, you know, the nore you can
talk with the applicant -- | nean, you guys now have been
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granted -- or you will be granted party status. So there is
I ncentive for themto talk to you and work with you, right?
You know, the nore you can work out before you get

to us, the better, right? And so that's what |'mtrying to

encourage to you. Again, | haven't read the case, so | don't
know whet her or not they have a case, neani ng whet her they
would win or not, right? Like, |I nean, we’'re going to hear
that on the day of the hearing.

But whatever the nore -- you know, the nore you
guys can neet, the nore you guys can, you know, work things

out, the better it is for everyone ahead of tinme. OCkay?

Okay. Al right. So I'’mgoing to go ahead and
nmake a notion to approve the party status of M. Tolat,
M. Smth, and Ms. Kaval er, and ask for a second, M. John.

kay. 1’1l ask for a second, M. Bl ake.

MEMBER BLAKE: Second.

BZA CHAIR HILL: All right. Mtion has been nade
and seconded, Madam Secretary. |f you could take a rol
call, and maybe we’' || get one from Ms. John.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JCHN: Second. Second, M. --
Board Menber Hill. | had trouble getting to ny nute button.

BZA CHAIR HILL: That’s all right. That's --

MR, SM TH: Me, too.

MS. MEHLERT: Should we go with M. Bl ake’ s second

or Vice Chair John?
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BZA CHAIR HILL: Go with M. Blake. Vice Chair
John is always seconding, so --

M5. MEHLERT: Pl ease respondto the Chair’s notion
to grant party status in oppositionto Malini Tolat, Richard
Smth, and Maya Kaval er.

Chairman H Il ?

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Yes.

M5. MEHLERT: Vice Chair John?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  Yes.

MS. MEHLERT: M. Smth?

MEMBER SM TH:  Yes.

MS. MEHLERT: M. Bl ake?

MEMBER BLAKE: Yes.

M5. MEHLERT: Chairman Hood?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Yes.

M5. MEHLERT: Staff would record the vote as five
to zero to zero to approve or grant party status to Mlini
Tol at, Richard Smith, and Maya Kaval er, in Case 21151, on t he
notion made by Chairman Hill and seconded by M. Bl ake.

BZA CHAIR HILL: Okay. Geat. Thank you.

Al right, you guys. W w il see on Cctober 9th.

M5. KAVALER  Thank you.

BZA CHAIR HILL: Bye.

MR SMTH. Al right. Thanks for -- thanks for
|l etting us attend. Bye-bye.
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BZA CHAIR HI LL: Bye-bye. Good |uck to you.

Ckay. You can call our next one, then.

M5. MEHLERT: Next is another party status before
the Board, Application Nunmber 21143 of the Trustees for
Harvard University. This is a self-certified application
pursuant to Subtitle X, Section 901.2, for a special
exception under Subtitle U, Section 203.1(0), to allow use
of an existing residential building by a nonprofit
organi zation for the purposes of a nonprofit organization,
and pursuant to Subtitle X, Section 1002, for an area
variance from the gross floor area requirenments of
Subtitle U, Section 203.1(0)(2).

This is for nonprofit organization use in an
existing residential building. It is located in the R 1B/ GT
Zone at 3100 R Street, Northwest, Square 1281, Lot 836.

The public hearing for this case has al ready been
post poned to October 9th at ANC 2E s request. And before the
Board today are four requests for party status in opposition
-- Dani el Chao, Katherine and Peter Fitzgerald, Anmelie Stroh,
and Erin Drouin.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: ay. Geat. M. Chao, can you
hear me?

MR CHAO  Yes.

BZA CHAIR HILL: G eat . Could you introduce
yourself for the record and give us your address?
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MR, CHAO Hi . |’ m Dani el Chao. | live at
1698 31st Street, Nort hwest.

BZA CHAIR H LL: Okay. Geat.

M. Drouin, can you hear ne?

M. Young, do you see a M. Drouin? O is it
Ms. Drouin? OCh, there we go.

M5. DROUN Hello. Thisis Erin Drouin. Can you
hear nme?

BZA CHAIR HILL: Yes. Could you introduce

yourself for the record, please?

M5. DROUN Yes. This is Erin Drouin. | live
at --

BZA CHAIR HI LL: GCkay. And what --

M5. DROUIN:. -- 1692 31st Street.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Okay. WM. Fitzgerald, can you
hear ne? Ms. Fitzgerald, can you hear ne?

MS. FI TZGERALD: Yes.

BZA CHAIR HILL: G eat . Could you introduce
yourself for the record?

MS. FI TZGERALD: |’m Katherine Fitzgerald at
1681 31st Street, Northwest.

BZA CHAI R HI LL: kay. And, Ms. Stroh, can you
hear nme?

M5. STROH: Yes. This is Anmelie Stroh at
1679 31st Street, Northwest.
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BZA CHAIR HILL: Geat. Gkay. So what |’ mgoing
to ask you guys is -- I'mgoing to start wwth you, Ms. Stroh.
Why do you think you' re neeting the criteria for us to grant
you a party status?

M5. STROH: Because | live near -- | |ive what |
believe to be 200 feet, within the house -- 3001 R Street.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: GCkay. And your concerns are --
| see sonme of the things that are in your listing. Ckay.
So that’'s one, and |I’'m going to ask ny Board nenbers in a
second if they have any questions.

Can the Fitzgeral ds hear ne?

MS. FI TZGERALD: Yes, | can hear vyou. [’ m
Kat herine. My husband Peter is not here.

BZA CHAIR HILL: Ckay. No problem
Ms. Fitzgerald, why do you think you neet the criteria for
us to grant you party status?

MS. FI TZGERALD: Well, I'mdefinitely within the
200 feet. | received a letter about this in --

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Ckay.

M5. FITZGERALD: -- inviting nme to, you know --

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Ckay.

MS. FI TZGERALD: -- participate.

BZA CHAIR HILL: Ckay. Al right. And then
let’s see, I'll get -- oh. M. Drouin, can you hear ne?

M5. DROU N  Yes, | can.
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BZA CHAIR HI LL: Ckay.

M5. DROUN | alsolive wthin 200 feet of 3100 R
Street, and was sent a letter | guess by the |awers of
Harvard or a representative asking ne to partici pate.

BZA CHAIR HILL: Ckay. Asking you -- okay.
Asking you -- so are you all here in opposition?

MR CHAO Yes. As of now, for me.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Okay. Ms. Drouin?

M5. DROUIN. Yes. | currently am

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Okay. Ms. Fitzgeral d?

(No audi bl e response.)

BZA CHAIR HILL: Okay. And then, M. Stroh?

M5. STROH:  Yes.

BZA CHAIR HILL: Okay. As of now.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Okay. So just so you guys know,
like, the criteriais not that you're within 200 feet. 1It’s
t hat why you woul d be nore uni quely affected than the -- than
the general public within even that 200 feet. And so just

because you're that -- in that 200 feet doesn’t nmean that you
neet what the Board thinks neets the criteria for party
status. That just nmeans that that’s the notification that

goes out about anything that’s going on within the 200 feet.

M . Chao, he actually shares a party wall, and so,
you know, he would be nore uniquely -- in ny opinion, he
woul d be nore uniquely affected than other nenbers of the
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publi c.

Now, that doesn’t nean that the Board won’'t grant
sone party status, like if -- you know, if it's -- if it’'s
a coupl e doors down, maybe it depends on the type of project
that’s being -- gone on or put forth, and then so you maybe
even -- | don’'t know if -- what people think about the
| ocation for Ms. Drouin.

| see that the applicant’s teamis here. Can the
applicant hear ne?

M5. BATTIES: Yes. Good norning, Chairman Hill.
O good afternoon. Yes, | can hear you.

BZA CHAIR HILL: G eat . Coul d you introduce
yoursel f for the record, please?

M5. BATTIES: Yes. Leila Batties with the |aw
firmof Holland & Kni ght on behalf of the applicant.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Okay. So, first, let ne see, do
any of ny Board nenbers have any questions about anybody?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: M. Chair, right quick, | do have

a -- good afternoon, everyone.
| do have a question for Ms. Batties. |’mjust
curious of jurisdiction. I read the subm ssion.

Ms. Batties, why is this not in front of the Zoning
Commi ssion? Not that |I’mbidding for any work. | just want
to know why.

MS. BATTIES: Because the request -- it’s not part
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-- it’s not within the Dunbarton Caks Canpus Mster Pl an
which is the applications that typically go before the Zoni ng
Comm ssion. So this house is across -- directly across the

street, and they are seeking special exception approval for

nonprofit use of the property.

ZCCHAIRHOOD: So it’s outside of the canmpus pl an
ar ea.

MS. BATTIES: Right.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Okay. Al right. | guess |I can
go for that, nma’am

Thank you, M. Chairman.

Thank you, Ms. Batties.

BZA CHAIR HILL: Thank you. | just realized the
ANC -- [I'I1l cone right back to you. One second, Vice Chair
John.

The ANC Conmmi ssioner is here. |s that correct?

M5. LOHSE: Yes. ANC 2E06, Gaendol yn Lohse, and
| am the ANC representative in this matter, given that
Commi ssi oner Chao |ives i nmedi ately adj acent to the property
i n question.

BZA CHAIR HILL: GCkay. Geat. Gay. M. Chao
is also a Conmmi ssioner?

MS. LOHSE: Yes, he is.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: kay. G eat. Wel |, wel cone,
bot h Conmmi ssi oners.
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Let’'s see. kay. Vice Chair John, you had your
hand up? You're on nute, Vice Chair John.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JOHN: Thank you. Now | can
rephrase ny question. So | wanted to ask Ms. Batties if the
applicant objects to the request for party status.

M5. BATTIES: The applicant has comments on the
request, but does not object.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JOHN: Ckay. Thank you.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Ckay. Wat comments are they,
Ms. Batties?

MS. BATTIES: |If you can indulge ne for just two
mnutes. So | -- | do want to note for the record that on
July 11th -- we read all of the party status requests, and
on July 11th we filed a letter with the BZA in response to
all of the comments and concerns that were raised in the
party status request.

Also, this norning we filed into the record a
response to the statenent filed by M. Chao yesterday at
Exhibit 33 of the record. So our goal in responding to the
party status request and to M. Chao's statenent was to
address those coments and concerns that were pertinent to
the | egal standard of review, wanted to make sure that there
were a | ot of m sstatenents or m sunderstandings in both the
party request and M. Chao’s statenent.

So we wanted to clarify that information, and we
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al so wanted to provide additional information for both the
comunity stakeholders and the Board as we go forward. I
think if you read the party status requests, a lot -- there
Is a lot that is not pertinent to the |legal standard of
review, and so we felt that these responses were inportant
to share with the Board.

| also want to note, M. Chair, that this
application has been deferred twice. The first tine it was
deferred was at the request of Comm ssioner Chao. He said
he was not avail able. W were happy to postpone the
application -- or the hearing.

The nost recent deferral was at the request of
Conmi ssi oner Lohse. We did not -- she filed a notion to
post pone the hearing. W did not object to that
post ponenent, with the understanding that the ANC is going
to host a conmunity neeti ng next week on July 29th to di scuss
this application, and then bring this application before the
ANC on Sept enber 3rd.

Now, we have been -- we first net wth
Commi ssi oner Lohse and Conm ssioner Chao on April 2nd or --
yeah, April 2nd, the day after we filed this application.
W hosted -- the applicant hosted a community neeting on
June 13t h.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Ms. Batties?

MS. BATTIES: Yeah.

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1716 14TH ST., N.W,, STE 200
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20009-4309 www.nealrgross.com




A WD

o O

~l

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

89

BZA CHAIR HILL: So I'’mjust going to interrupt
you. So |I'm looking through all of the exhibits that you
guys are talking through. | nean, | think that, you know,
If you are to continue to work with whoever ends up getting
party status, that woul d obvi ously be what you all woul d want
to do, and then you're going to continue to work with the
ANC. And this is back on the docket agai n when?

M5. BATTIES: | do want clarification. | thought
it was on Cctober 23rd, but | heard October 9th, when
Ms. Mehlert spoke earlier.

BZA CHAIR HILL: M. Mehlert, can you tell us?

VB. VEHLERT: l’m sorry. Yeah. It’s
Oct ober 23rd. | misspoke earlier.

BZA CHAIR HILL: Okay. Geat. Al right.

MS. BATTIES: Look, M. Chair, | just want to know
-- we have been in constant conmunication with the -- with
Conm ssioner Chao and Conm ssioner Lohse since this
application was filed. W have agreed to be cooperative in

the spirit of cooperation with --

BZA CHAIR HILL: Ms. Batties, I’msorry. |1’ mjust
going to interrupt you. |’ve got you. Like, | don't want
to hear the back and forth. Comm ssioner Chao is telling us

-- | mean, we’'re just here for party status.
M5. BATTIES: kay.
BZA CHAIR HILL: And so, you know, so let’s see.
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l’mgoing to -- I’"’mgoing to -- I'"mgoing to |et everybody

go, and then I'mgoing to |let ny Board determ ne whether or

not -- who we think should get party status.

Before we let anybody go, I'mletting you know
that |’ m probably going to -- you know, |I’m going to agree
that M. Chao is uniquely affected. | don’t know about

Ms. Drouin, and | don’t think that the Fitzgeralds or the
Strohs are any nore uniquely affected than ot her nenbers of

the general public in that area. So if --

MS. STROH: Well, when --

BZA CHAIR HILL: If -- if --

M5. STROH:  Wen --

BZA CHAIR HI LL: If -- if -- M. Stroh, if you
don’t get party status -- |I'’mjust giving you nmy vote. |If
you don’t get party status, then you' Il be able to be either
a wtness for M. Chao, okay, during his presentation or you
will also have an opportunity to give testinony as a nenber
of the public.

Now, go ahead. What was your question?

M5. STROH: So when you asked nme initially, |
didn’t understand fully when you wanted ny opinion why I
shoul d get party status. Parking is critical on our bl ock.
It’s a critical 1issue. And also, this is a residential
community, and there is a conmunity going on. They’' ve had
this house for over three years. They have left it -- it’s
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I n awful shape.

It is--thisis aresidential neighborhood. This
| npacts our val ues. This is -- we all know -- all the
nei ghbors know each other. | amright there. W are -- and

those of us near this corner in particular are inpacted by
the parking and also by it being a business, you know, a
nonprofit business. And this is why | feel |ike everyone on
this call should be qualified to party status. W are up

agai nst Harvard, which has a huge canpus.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Ckay, Ms. Stroh. | got you. |
got you.

M5. STROH  kay.

BZA CHAIR HILL: The Board is going to detern ne
whether or not you qualify for party status per the

regul ations. Okay? And so we’'ll see what the Board has to
say. GCkay? So --

M5. DROUIN: This is M. Drouin.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Sure. Go ahead, M. Drouin.

M5. DROUN | just want to add that | share an
alley with the building in question, and | am three doors
down from 3100 R Street, and that it has been -- renmmined
nostly vacant, and the first conmuni cation we had was in the
| ast three nonths. As the |lawyer indicated, we have just
heard fromthe awers in the |ast three nonths.

And | think the question raised by one of your
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Comm ssi oners about why this isn’t before the Board of Zoning
was a question that residents had, living in a residential
nei ghbor hood and t he university wanting to change a resi dence
fromresidential use.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: GCkay. So, Ms. Drouin, | got you.
And the only reason why |I’'mkind of -- we’'re not taking any
testi nony today on the actual nerits of the case. So that'’'s
why - -

M5. DROUN. Right. I"mnot alawer, so | don't
know what the rules are that you follow So | just wanted
to add sone nore detail to -- for ny --

BZA CHAIR HILL: Okay. | got you.

M5. DROU N. Ckay. Thank you.

BZA CHAIR HILL: So the -- whoever gets party
status will then be able to be a party. Wat that neans,
again -- | guess you mght have seen the last one -- that
nmeans you' Il be able to give your presentation, you |l be
able to have witnesses, you'll be able to -- the ANC is a
party, an autonatic party, so they will also be able to give
their presentation. They will be able to have w tnesses.

And so if whoever gets party status, wants anybody to be a
Wi t ness, they can.

In addition to that, people that don't get party
status will be able to give testinony during the hearing
itself. And so that’s another opportunity for the public to
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give their testinony.

MR CHAG | do --

BZA CHAIR H LL: So -- go ahead, M. Chao.

MR CHAO | amso sorry. | do want to just say
quickly that | have a disagreenent with Ms. Batties about
communi cati on. | think that, on behalf of everyone,
conmuni cation has beenalittle bit problematic. M. Batties
knows that she and | both spoke first when | was not a
Comm ssioner, and | talked to her as a neighbor, and she
assured that | wuld be notified about any type of
applicati ons.

And then | becane a Comm ssioner, but then |
hel ped themw th their 20-year canmpus plan to get the ANC s
full approval unani nous. And | had a good working
rel ati onshi p.

And then, conme to find out, | was blind-sided by
an application -- this application. | wasn't even tol d about
it. | was working, and they said --

BZA CHAIR HILL: Okay. So | got you.

MR, CHAO -- communication is key.

BZA CHAIR HILL: As | said, this is not the
heari ng, but | understand -- you know, I'’mnot -- we’'re not
trying to take testinony back and forth, or what have you.

But we will have a hearing, and then --
MR. CHAO Yeah.
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BZA CHAIR HILL: -- oObviously, if there is any
conmuni cation that hasn’t been goi ng on bet ween t he appl i cant
and those -- well, even the ANC is here, right? So the --
| don’t even know what the ANC s position is yet. And so
they will have to work through the ANC and then we' Il take
all of the testinony during the hearing.

Do ny fell ow Board nenbers have any questions of
anybody before | excuse everyone? Go ahead, M. Bl ake.

MEMBER BLAKE: Yeah. Did we get comments fromthe
ANC as to whether they would have objections to any of the
potential party status requests?

M5. LOHSE: This is Conm ssioner Gaendol yn Lohse
fromthe ANC, and | -- | do support a party status for al
of the individuals that are property owners on this |ine.
| think this is a very inportant discussion.

Harvard Uni versity, obviously, has quite a | ot of
real estate within our conmunity, and we want to continue to
ensure that -- good community relations, and | think |
haven’t -- | don't Ilive near this area, and it's ny
observation that there is inprovenent for community
rel ati ons.

And granting party status with shared alleys,
adj acent people, people across the street, when they are
| ooki ng at a vacant hone, and there has been safety issues,
and there has been sone need for conmunication, wll
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encourage the parties to work together as we try to consi der
what potential conditions may be appropri ate.

| hope to have good relations as we work towards
what could be a potential -- potential agreenent. W have
a bit -- a while to go there, and | do think these
I ndividuals are all wuniquely positioned because of their
experiences to date over the last while while Harvard has
owned the property.

And, again, it is not in the canpus plan.

BZA CHAIR H LL: Ckay. Ms. John, you have your
hand up?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JOHN: So bef ore everyone | eaves,
|’d just like to add a point of clarification that the
applicant has not objected to party status for all of the
requesters. The other thing | would like to add is that the
ANC and the party requesters should be aware of what the
applicant is asking to do.

So the applicant is asking to use this residenti al

building for an office purpose, because the regulations

require that. And the applicant is representing that only
four people maximum wll wuse this building for office
pur poses. And the applicant is not seeking relief from
par ki ng.

And just in passing, as a gratuitous coment, |
would note that four people in a house is not a |ot of
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people, and I'll just offer that as you all discuss this
application.

M5. LOHSE: And | think, Vice Chair, | appreciate
what the scope of the application is, and the two requests,
both the variance and the use, and the tine period as well.
Just for your understanding, | do have a solid view of what
I s being requested.

And | al so understand that one of the applicants
for party status -- you know, this is -- the 200 feet are
drawn fromthe center wwth tax -- using tax lists, and the --
one of the applicants, M. Stroh, is 200 feet from the
property line.

So | appreciate that -- again, | appreciate the
applicant is supportive of the party status, and | also
appreciate we all want to have a good understandi ng of what
the applicant is asking. Yet -- and that is one key reason
why | am supporting party status, and | al so supported sone
extension of the hearing, because | want there to be anple
time for discussion. And there hasn’t been anple tinme, and,
you know, summrer i s al nost inpossible to get anyone toget her.
And you really need to have -- this is a conplicated topic
for those that aren’t in the know and know edgeabl e on
zoni ng.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JOHN: Thanks. | just wanted to
focus everyone’'s -- this is a good place to focus what the

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1716 14TH ST., N.W,, STE 200
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20009-4309 www.nealrgross.com




A wWwN

o O

~l

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

97

hearing wll be about.

M5. LOHSE: Yep. Absolutely.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JOHN: About allow ng four
enpl oyees to use this building on a tenporary basis, as |
understand it.

Ckay. That's all | had, M. Chairnman.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Ckay. Thanks, Ms. John.

Al right. Anybody el se have any questions of
anyone? Gkay. Geat.

All right. Let’'s see. M. Young, if you could
please -- if you want to put themall in aroom if we have
to cone back to them we can. But if you want to go ahead
and excuse them

Thank you, guys.

kay. So, you know, we have party status requests
all the tinme, advance party status requests all the tine.
And so, again, |I'mjust going to read the regulation for
t hose who are watching. Under Y 404.13, “The Board shall
grant party status only if the person who i s requesting party
status has clearly denonstrated that the person’s interest
would Ilikely be nore significantly, distinctively, or
uni quely affected i n character or kind by the proposed zoni ng
action than those of other persons in the general public.”

And then, if we did grant party status, then those
peopl e woul d have party status, right? They would be able
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to act as a party. |I'mrepeating nyself. But, in any case,
| amon -- | think that the one who is sharing the party wall
with the applicant, M. Chao, Conmm ssioner Chao, | would --
Chao. Chao. | would agree that he should get party status.

| guess Ms. Drouin, since she does share an alley
there wwth the property, | could, you know, nmaybe think that
she is nore clearly affected.

Internms of the testinony fromthe Fitzgeral ds or,
again, M. Stroh, you know, even the issues that they are
tal king about wth parking and other issues that have cone
up i n her concerns, or their concerns, |ike econoni c changi ng
to the property fromresidential use, environnental issues,
you know, those are nore general public issues | think.

So | wouldn’t be in support of giving party status

to the -- at least right now, before we start having a
di scussion, between the Fitzgerald -- M. Fitzgerald and
Ms. Stroh. And | don't really know what | think of

Ms. Drouin, but M. Chao, | would agree, has nmet the -- has
nmet the criteria for the regulations -- per the regul ations.

| amgoing to ask M. Smth what his thoughts are,

pl ease.

MEMBER SMTH: So | do agree with your -- wth
your assessment on M. Chao, being that he is -- shares a
party wall with the adjacent property owner. And, again,
this is -- this decision is based off of the regulation,
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Y 404. 13, uniquely affected.

And | am also | ooking at -- based on within the
record what the applicant -- what the various party status
requesters have stated for their -- how they are uniquely

af fected or what their concerns are. Again, M. Chao has --
shares a party wall.

| agree with you that the -- Ms. Stroh, given her
di stance fromthe property and the concerns that she raised
regardi ng noi se, street parking, property nmaintenance, are
nore general in nature, that aren’'t -- to ne does not rise
to the level that she uniquely -- on that block is uniquely
af fected by these.

Those types of concerns | believe are probably
shared by the entire block, if not the entire nei ghborhood.
Those are very general concerns that | think would be rai sed
by any party, Your Honor, that is -- that I|ives along
31st Street or R Street, or to that matter 32nd Street,
because it's -- that block is also in close proximty.

Also, with Ms. Drouin, a |arge anount of those
concerns are general in nature. The only uni que one separate
fromthat is the alley use. The use of the alley -- | do not
believe that she is uniquely affected in that -- fromthat
st andpoi nt because all of the properties that back up from
32nd and 31st Street share that sanme all ey. So | do not
believe that she is uniquely affected sinply because she
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shares a common alley that other properties in this area
share with the property in question.

Sol wll only be inclined to grant party status
to the -- M. Chao. Again, that does not stop Ms. Stroh or
Ms. Drouin from coordinating with M. Chao as part of his
testinony as wtnesses, and it also does not preclude them
fromtestifying in their own capacity, but not necessarily

wth party status | evel as part of the hearing.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Ckay.

MEMBER SM TH:  So only M. Chao.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Thank you.

M. Bl ake?

MEMBER BLAKE: For the sake of tinme, | wll be
very brief. | will align ny coonments with M. Smith in this
matter.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Thank you.

Vi ce Chair John?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JOHN: Thank you, M. Chairman.
So |l -- | went back and forth about Ms. Drouin because of her
concerns about the alley, and | don’'t think the other two --
the Fitzgeralds and Ms. Stroh -- would be nore uniquely
affected than what Ms. Drouin -- than Ms. Drouin in this
case. So I would be inclined to allow party status for
Ms. Drouin and M. Chao.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Gkay. Chairmn Hood?
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ZC CHAIR HOOD: For the sake of tine, | wll align
nyself with Vice Chair John’s comments. Thank you,
M. Chai r man.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Ckay.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Ckay. Yeah. "Il leave it at
t hat .

BZA CHAIR HILL: GCkay. | amgoing to -- | guess
Il will go wwth Vice Chair John and Chairman Hood. | think
it’s kind of -- it’s unclear to ne whether Ms. Drouin should
get or shouldn’'t get party status, but I'Il lean ny vote

towards her getting party status.

And then | would ask that M. Chao and Ms. Drouin
comruni cate wi th each other about their presentation and try
not to repeat whatever they plan on giving us testinony
about. | would think that if they can coordinate, it would
be nore effective and -- for the Board in terns of their
present ati on.

So, basically, they would give a presentation.
It would be good if they chose who would lead the
presentation, and then who woul d support, you know, in termns
of being a wtness. So I'"'m going to go ahead and nake a
notion, then, to approve party status for M. Chao and
Ms. Drouin, and ask for a second, M. John.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JCOHN:  Second.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Mdtion made and seconded. Madam
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Secretary, if you could take a roll call, please.

MS. MEHLERT: Pl ease respondto the Chair’s notion
to grant party status in opposition to Daniel Chao and Erin
Drouin, and to deny party status to Katherine and Peter
Fitzgerald and Anelie Stroh.

Chairman H Il ?

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Yes.

M5. MEHLERT: Vice Chair John?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  Yes.

MS. MEHLERT: M. Smth?

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Hol d on. G ve nme a second.
Wait, wait. M. Mehlert, so |l didn't make a notion -- | was
going to nake two notions. So the first notion --

M5. MEHLERT: Ch, sorry.

BZA CHAIR HILL: That’s all right. The first
notion | nade was to approve the party status of M. Chao and
Ms. Drouin. M. John just seconded. So let’s do that vote
first.

M5. MEHLERT: Okay. Apologies. Please respond
to the Chair’s notion to grant party status to Dani el Chao
and Erin Drouin.

Chairman Hill?

BZA CHAIR HILL: Yes.

M5. MEHLERT: Vice Chair John?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  Yes.
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M5. MEHLERT: M. Smth?

MEMBER SM TH:  This is party status for both?

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Yes.

M5. MEHLERT: Yes.

MEMBER SM TH:  No.

M5. MEHLERT: M. Bl ake?

MEMBER BLAKE: Yes.

M5. MEHLERT: And Chai r man Hood?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Yes.

M5. MEHLERT: Staff would record the vote as four
to one to zero to grant party status in opposition to Daniel
Chao and Erin Drouin on the notion made by Chairman Hill and
seconded by Vice Chair John.

BZA CHAIR H LL: M. Smth, | appreciate -- there
was an old Conm ssioner that M. -- that Chairman Hood
probably knows that woul d make nme bifurcate that little vote

there, you know, and so since you are going to fail anyway,

you know, | appreciate you making nore work for ne. Right?
Ckay. Now |’ m going to make another notion to
deny party status for Ms. Fitzgerald and Ms. Stroh and ask

for a second, M. John.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  Second.

BZA CHAIR HILL: Motion made and seconded.
Ms. Mehlert, if you could take a roll call, please.

MS. MEHLERT: Pl ease respondto the Chair’s notion
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to deny party status to Katherine Fitzgerald and Anelie
Stroh.

Chairman H Il ?

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Yes.

M5. MEHLERT: Vice Chair John?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON JOHN:  Yes.

M5. MEHLERT: M. Smth?

MEMBER SM TH:  Yes.

MS. MEHLERT: M. Bl ake?

MEMBER BLAKE: Yes.

M5. MEHLERT: And Chai rman Hood?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Yes.

M5. MEHLERT: Staff would record the vote as five
to zero to zero to deny party status in opposition to
Kat herine Fitzgerald and Anelie Stroh on the notion made by
Chairman Hi Il and seconded by Vice Chair John.

BZA CHAIR HILL: Okay. And then the hearing is
on 10/23. Is that what you said, Ms. Mehlert?

M5. MEHLERT: Correct. Yes.

BZA CHAIR HILL: Okay. Geat. Al right. Thank
you. Ckay. So that’'s that.

(Wher eupon, the above-entitled matter went off

the record.)

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1716 14TH ST., N.W,, STE 200
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20009-4309 www.nealrgross.com




105

CERTI FI CATE

This is to certify that the foregoing transcript

In the matter of: Board of Zoning Adjustment

Before: DC Office of Zoning

Date: 07-24-24

Pl ace: teleconference

was duly recorded and accurately transcribed under

ny direction; further, that said transcript is a

true and accurate complete record of the

pr oceedi ngs.

Court Reporter

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1716 14TH ST., N.W., STE. 200
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20009-7831 www.nealrgross.com




